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Innovating from Strength
Delivering Regional Excellence
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Customer Service Excellence with
Corporate Responsibility
BITHESE HEBEEEEFRK

Caring for the Community BE{E# &
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Caring for the Employees B1Z& T
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Quiality Policy of ASL
BB R AN EE A

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing customers innovative,
quality, and integrated one-stop IT services and solutions. We aim at satisfying our customer’s
business needs through forging strategic alliance with our business partners and the shared
value of the Group - “TAPS”":

* "T"-Taking partin “Teamwork”
* "A’-Being "Accountable” on each one's area of responsibilities towards the Group’s goal

* "P"-"Problem solving” for customers by leveraging the Group's strength and synergy
e "S""Strive for excellence” to achieve continual improvements

BARSKAZKEFNTREEN  REPRHE VA BELRBANEMBH
ARKRE - BB BRBUBBENERUTHARNEES MEEFPNERTE -

e [E s
EEANBESEAHEENER [ RECHE]
BEEENE N MBRMESETP [FREE]
BB DGE A [ K e 8

Automated Systems (HK) Limited B B1 £ 4 (F8) BR AR

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.3 - Maturity Level 3 Rating

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
1.30R — 58 = AT

1SO 9001 : 2008 1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 1505 Certificate No.: CC 5337
Enterprise Solutions & Procurement and Logistics CMMIe is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
Services Division Department by Carnegie Mellon University
DR B 230 Pk R
ERIRDRRESH IR CMMIe Jh RN B2 X B R EEEFHIEFEM 2 EE

1SO 20000-1 : 2005
Certificate No.: CC 5406

ELM Computer Technologies Limited #i 7k & & % B R 2 7

1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 3268
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ASL at a Glance
BEERZIFHEEBE

Corporate Overview £ & f& /1

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co,, Ltd. (‘“Teamsun”) (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes the
Company's ultimate controlling shareholder in September 2009, supporting the Company’s
further business expansion in the Asia Pacific region

Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT solutions and services to customers across the region with
business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau and Asia Pacific countries

including Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia and etc.

819734 R & ARHRRTS
EREBREABEEMDARAR ([FEBRK]) (LFE
HERHMBHRFE: RETN—F)R_FEZNFNA
RAERBESEERER XHEEE-PNELARER
ES

HORBEREPRM =] BB EARRT = RR
¥ EBEBELEE REAMN B2 BFAREAMEES
TR B 0K KR R SR i

Financial Highlights B i i &
For the year ended 31st December 2011 HZE =T ——F+ - A=+—HILFE

|

Revenue WA

wks1,537.3M wks507.6M

¥
~

Net profit &1 5|

wks44.8M

Net asset value & & B &

Orders newly secured ¥ 255] &

;1’ wks1,794.7M
b

>

Basic earnings per share & IR £ &< & 7
w14.39 cents

2011 Operational Highlights % 7% i &
For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+_A=+—HILtFE

Acquired the entire equity interest of i-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd (“-Sprint”), a Singapore-based
world-class credential and access management solutions provider, on 28th March 2011, to
accelerate expansion to Asia Pacific region, particularly in IT security market

Penetrated full suite of i-Sprint products into Hong Kong market successfully and expanded
i-Sprint’s presence into mainland China and Taiwan market

Scored significant wins from the [T infrastructure, solutions and services businesses continually
Won a number of significant long term managed and maintenance services contracts in both
Hong Kong and overseas and showed our high level of services excellence

Earned ISO 9001 certification (Procurement and Logistics Department) and ISO 20000 IT Service
Management certification to further enhance service level

Continued business expansion by leveraging more collaborative opportunities with Teamsun

RZZT——F= A=+ /\BYEi-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd.
(Misprint]) (—REHMUE AL BBEREABTRBRF R
BRI AN A R 6 2 S AR AR 2 AN R AE R To K 26 7% -
EERERB KL R NS

R EE iSprintE @S| ABE™S - HEE B HXBK
REFEANME EETS

BETEAREER BASRNBBEES LNEEE
EHE
REEREINARESZERANEENEEREEL
TEAMEUNEE RS

& 77150 9001 & & & IR A E (R EE R T #B) 15150
20000& S EHE IR EERE  NE—FRAMRBLE =
ERHEBPAKNEZOHEERS EEXBRR

2012 Outlooks & £

Expand the recurrent revenue-based business, such as managed services, and win more sizable
projects from customers in public and private sector

Continue to carry out strategy in promoting the reach of various kinds of solutions

Facilitate the growth of IT security solutions business by leveraging the advantages and leading
position of i-Sprint in the market

Seize actively the business opportunities arising from the future market transition into the
"Cloud Era"

Continue to implement cost-effective measures, strengthen our services level and quality,
establish stronger partnership alliance and create greater synergies with Teamsun

MRINEERES ARG EEERANES  LREHE
RRAERBEEFPFMESALLIAR

AL T HE R RRR JT SR Y R MR

BAESprintM B B R N T 5 L #O R  HE B) A AR R
REMRTEEBOER

TG IR R K T IHE A E [ Eiam s R P SR a0 i
BEERRA RGN RARGKFNESR BUE
SRR S VERS B B - P BREE B R AR A 1 TN AO 10 R K i
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd

Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,

Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

FTERODBFERE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd
Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM12, Bermuda
EERONBFETE

BEEERERAR
BB E2FKEFR8HR
&8 E 261

B £H
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R RE% : 771

AR EE
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Financial Calendar

B 1% H w

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
RERE

04,2011

First quarter Interim

(for the three months ended (for the six months ended
31st March 2011) 30th June 2011)

27th April 2011 19th August 2011
(§14777¢ (§14777¢

ZA=+—HiL=1A)
—E2-——FMA=-t++tH

DIVIDEND
KR E

05,2012

Proposed final dividend payment (5.5 HK cents per share)
23rd May 2012

BORREIR B (FRRS5.584l)
—E-—#RA=-+=H

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
TERERGOBRFE

04,201 2

23rd April 2012 to 26th April 2012

CE-CHENMAS+=ZHEZZ-—-FWAZ=+KH

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BRRBFRE

04,2012

26th April 2012

—E--HMA=+XA

08,2011

/\ﬁ—+5¢/\@ﬁ)
—2——&#\At+hA

10,2011

Third quarter

(for the nine months ended
30th September 2011)

27th October 2011

B=FE
(BE=F——*
NA=+EAUAEA)
—g-——#+A=++H

05,2012

4th May 2012 to 9th May 2012

“E-C“HAAMAEC

03,2012

Annual

(for the year ended
31st December 2011)
15th March 2012

FE
(Biz=—F——F +=AH

=F+—HIFE)

—E-—H=ZA+HHAH

E-—_FHANA
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Financial Summary
B 1% 2

RESULTS
LS

For the For the nine
year ended months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010 For the twelve months ended 31st March
BE-Z—-% H2-Z-Zf¥ BE=A=t—-HL+=EA
+=A=t-H +=A=+-H 2010 2009 2008
LEE LEhEA “Z-%F “ZTAE “TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT FHT THT
(restated)
(E23)
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue ON 1,537,328 994,509 1,329,982 1,360,938 1,315,060
Profit before income tax BB AR A 45,110 44,181 53617 43262 81,639
Income tax expense FIERES (294) (9.648) (9.857) (9423) (11,786)
Profit from continuing operations REFBEELER 2GR 44,816 34533 43760 33839 69,853
Discontinued operations BRILGEER
Profit from discontinued operations REC R IHEEEK 25T - = 72,598 83812 6,300
Profit for the year/period attributable to AN 23 B fR AN 5 A FE{E
equity holders of the Company F/HREF 44,816 34533 116,358 42651 76,153
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 31st December As at 31st March
R+=A=+-H R=A=+-H
2011 2010 2010 2009 2008
—Z2-—-% —Z-%F —ZT-IZF “ZTNE “TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR THT FHT THT
(restated)
(23)
Total assets BEE 909,247 820,799 830,861 883,562 994,995
Total liabilities Bak 401,620 363558 424,7% 352,066 426,874
507,627 457,241 406,065 531,496 568,121
Equity attributable to equity REREFHEA
holders of the Company PR A 2
Total equity BER 507,627 457,241 406,065 531,49 568,121
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the annual report of
Automated Systems Holdings Limited (“ASL" or the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group") for the year ended 31st December 2011.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,537.3 million, an increase of 10.4% when compared with HK$1,392.5 million in
January to December 2010. For the year ended 31st December 2011, profit before
tax was HK$45.1 million, a decrease of HK$27.8 million or 38.1% when compared
with HK$72.9 million in January to December 2010. The Group continues to enjoy
a healthy financial position and its cash balance as at 31st December 2011 was
approximately HK$108.4 million.

During the year, notwithstanding the Group recorded a decrease in profit before
tax for the year which was affected by the increase in overall operating costs, our
leading position as one of the top IT services providers in the region has been
further enhanced by leveraging on the cross-territories business strategy and our
solid presence. In March 2011, the Group has successfully acquired the entire
equity interest of i-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd. ("i-Sprint”), a Singapore-based
company providing world-class credential and access management solutions. This
acquisition will not only accelerate the development of the Group in Asia Pacific but
also strengthens the Group's existing security solutions portfolio.

ASL will continue to provide one-stop comprehensive IT services while leveraging
both the resources strengths of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co,, Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
the ultimate holding company of the Group, and our professional expertise to
further expand the Asia Pacific market.

The Group has always been striving to enhance its service quality and to provide
value-added services to our customers. During the period under review, ASL

was awarded the ISO 20000 IT Service Management Accreditation and became
one of the few IT companies earning this accreditation. The scope of ISO 20000
certification includes managed services, internal help desk and [T service support.
In addition, the Procurement and Logistic Department of the Group has been
awarded the ISO 9001 Accreditation during the year. The scope of coverage
under this accreditation includes purchasing, export management, inventory and
logistics management. These accreditations fully demonstrate ASL's capabilities
in complying with the international standards in IT services management as well
as optimising its internal processes up to the international standards, thereby
enhancing the Company’s internal efficiency and customers’ satisfaction.

AANBRREFEMALLADEAREBERA
A(TEBRZI R [ARE ) MEMBAR ([AE
BDEZ-Z——F+-A=t+—HILFENFHK-

HE-_Z——F+_-_A=+—BULFE ~AEBEHRE
I A1,537,300000/8 7T - B FE—TF—E+ =AM
A1,392,500,000/8 JTLELEIE H1104% c HLE — T ——4F
+TZA=+—HIFE  BRATSR AR F A45,100,000
B BT —ZTF -+ ANBRATER G T
72,900,0007% 7T b R 227,800,000 7T 8k38.1% © A &=
EEEZHEBROUERL RZF—F+=A
=+—BMIE S R4 A1084000007 T ©

REAN BERAEEIEBRALAZE %%
FERMTERANRFEE TK BERERNEENEM
R RABREEAR  BIMERRAEH —KIE
BEMBERGEEFOMCDTEBZE RN
——F = A A& E KK EE-Sprint Innovations Pte.
Ld. (Ti-Sprint 1) ( —RIBHHERFRE KRBT ANEERE
R REFTINE AR 2 MR - I E T E
MEREENRERENER TRERNEERBR
TRORFTREE -

B RS BEERE AN EEARRRS -
[ A /B AR SR S A IR B AL R B R AR R IR
MARAR ([EBRK])WERESRAKENE
AT DR RETS-

AEBE-HEBNIREARBER ARFPRMHEAE
ERIRTS - B 2 Z 550 EE HAN 48150 20000& 71l
BRISEERET KALBELRBNEMREA
B2 — ° 1SO 2000057 3& K &6 [ % Z & RS - MEPsK
Ba REMBHLZIBR o bboh - NREBRRE LY
EBFI IR E NSO 900155 - Z R B HE 2%
K HOER EFEEDRER ZERBRAIKR
EB RS MBENEFEEETIEEMBHE R
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As always, the Group's ties with [T vendors remain strong in order to enhance the
Group's competitiveness and service quality. During the period under review, the
Group was honoured with a number of awards from our partners, such as “Top
Growth Partner of the Year 2010 Hong Kong” by McAfee and “FY11 Best Storage
Reseller” by Symantec. At the same time, we also established new partnerships such
as the "Hitachi Data Systems (HDS) — Gold Partner”. Moreover, the Group continued
to collaborate closely with business partners. It became the first Oracle Platinum
Partner in Hong Kong with five specifications. During the year, one of our security
experts was honored as the winner of the first “BCI Asia Business Continuity Awards
- Business Continuity Specialist of the Year (2011)", which was in recognition of the
expert’s outstanding performance. This award also demonstrates that the Group
has retained a large pool of experienced professionals and expertise in different IT
areas, fully illustrating the Group's strengths in offering a variety of IT solutions.

Besides business development, the Group also recognised the importance of its
corporate social responsibilities. Apart from continuing to be recognised as a Caring
Company, the Group is also appreciated by many social charitable organisations,
such as receiving the "Hero of Barrier-Free Award” in recognising our commitment
to employ disabled people in our Digital Imaging Centre since 2002 and the
“Enterprise Caring Award” for our donation of computers and provision of IT
technical support to social charitable organisations and computer courses to the
social disadvantaged group in repaying to the community.

Commencing from December 2011, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready ("Mr. Lai") resigned as
the Chief Executive Officer and remains as an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Lai also assumed the position of Vice Chairman of the Board. Our Senior Vice
President of Sales, Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry (“Mr. Hui") has assumed the position
as Chief Executive Officer after serving in ASL for over seventeen years. | strongly
believe that under Mr. Lai's participation in the respective works of the Board and
his strategic planning and development and the distinctive leadership of Mr. Hui,
the Group will continue its stable development to achieve better results.

With effect from December 2011, Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon (“Mr. Leung”), an
Executive Director, ceased to be the Chief Operating Officer of the Company but
continues his role as the chairman of i-Sprint. His new duties include new business
ventures, mergers and acquisitions and capital investments. Moreover, with the
appointment of Mr. Leung as a senior advisor acting on behalf of the Company,
he will synergise the Company's global business strategy with Teamsun. | have full
confidence that Mr. Leung will further develop the business of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to Mr. Lai for his
contributions and services to the Group over the years and welcome Mr. Hui and
Mr. Leung to their new positions.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our thanks to our prestigious clients,
business partners and shareholders for their support during the year. | would also
like to thank the management and all staff for their whole-hearted contributions and
dedications to achieve better results for the Group. Last but not least, | would like to
express my gratitude for my fellow directors for their dedicated services and support.

HU Lianku
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th March 2012

Chairman’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
17T I 4B 5 3R &5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial results

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group's revenue was HK$1,537.3
million, higher by 10.4% compared to the period from January to December 2010.
For the three months ended 31st December 2011, the revenue of the Group was
HK$391.1 million, higher by 8.3% compared to the same period last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2011, product sales and service revenue

were HK$899.5 million and HK$637.8 million, which increased by 6.6% and 16.3%
compared to the period from January to December 2010 respectively. Product sales
and service revenue contributed 58.5% and 41.5% to total revenue respectively,
compared to 60.6% and 39.4% from the period from January to December 2010. For
the three months ended 31st December 2011, product sales and service revenue
were HK$219.8 million and HK$171.3 million, which increased by 8.7% and 7.7%
respectively as compared with the three months ended 31st December 2010.

Commercial and public sector sales for the year ended 31st December 2011
contributed 39.9% and 60.1% to revenue respectively, compared to 44.9% and
55.1% for the period from January to December 2010. Commercial and public
sector sales for the three months ended 31st December 2011 contributed 42.4%
and 57.6% to revenue respectively, compared to 39.6 % and 60.4 % for the same
period in 2010.

Profit before income tax was HK$45.1 million for the full year of 2011, lower by 38.1%
compared to the period from January to December of 2010. For the three months
ended 31st December 2011, profit before income tax was HK$15.3 million, lower by
32.0% compared to the corresponding period last year. The increase in operating costs
of the Group caused a decrease in profit before income tax. The increase in staff costs,
investment in various projects, the one-off relevant expenses for acquiring i-Sprint
Innovations Pte. Ltd. (‘i-Sprint”) and additional operating costs were also the primary
factors. During the period under review, the Group assessed the tax allowance provided
in previous years, and reversed part of the allowance to partially reduce the impact from
an increase in operating cost. The Group will continue to focus on a series of current
cost control measures to lower its software business overheads by outsourcing and
strengthening the relevant management in human resources and software projects.

EEENWR DN
HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—RAILFE KXE£EEZ
W A A1,5373000008 0 - E—TF—2=+_ A
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During the three and twelve months ended 31st December 2011, orders newly secured
by the Group amounted to approximately HK$507.5 million and HK$1,794.7 million
respectively, representing an increase of 26.3% and 22.2% respectively as compared
with the corresponding period in 2010. As of 31st December 2011, the order book
balance was approximately HK$713.7 million, an increase of HK$97.5 million compared
to the corresponding period last year. The Group's cash stood at approximately
HK$1084 million with a working capital ratio of 1.73:1. The Group maintained a healthy
balance sheet and no debt was recorded during the period under review.

In view of the change of financial year end date of the Company on 15th July 2010,
the audited and unaudited results for the period from January to December 2011
and 2010 respectively are tabled below for comparative purpose only.

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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Twelve months ended 31st December

BE+-A=+t—BL+=@A

2011 2010

HK$’000 HKS'000

Audited Unaudited

—E——F —E-FF

FHExT FHET

BRERZ REHEZ

Revenue WA 1,537,328 1,392,510

Cost of goods sold HE KA (808,780) (754,950)

Cost of services rendered TR Z A A (558,098) (456,170)

Other income E A 3,594 7,278

Other loss H e (1,226) -

Fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties BHIEEMEZ ASEBEE N 4,000 9,390

Selling expenses HEE M (69,599) (69,631)

Administrative expenses THER (64,291) (57,557)

Finance income B U A 1,269 874

Share of results of associates EIREEE N A EE 913 1,190

Profit before income tax B B 18 % A E R 45,110 72,934

Income tax expense FTisHiAX (294) (14,421)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the ERERAEFE ABIEFEREF

Company 44,816 58513

Business Review

For the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group recorded a growth in revenue
representing an increase of 10.4% as compared to the period from January to
December 2010.

Continuous expansion in Asia Pacific Region'’s IT security market
On 28th March 2011, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of i-Sprint,

a Singapore-based world-class credential and access management solutions
provider. This acquisition not only helps the Group to secure an increasing number
of significant deals, but also widened its customer portfolios and enhanced market
penetration in different markets, thereby yielding encouraging results.

i-Sprint's development in the Greater China market is satisfactory. Its key
achievements included successful penetration of a full suite of i-Sprint products
into Hong Kong market in the first half of 2011, which was subsequently extended
to mainland China and resulted in a number of significant projects. i-Sprint also
established an R&D Centre at the Group's Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Centre
(ODEQ) in Zhuhai, focusing on product development and localisation for the
mainland China market. At the same time, i-Sprint expanded its business to Taiwan
not only by seizing a new order from TransGlobe Life Insurance Inc. towards the
end of last year, but also by winning a contract from one of the largest financial
institutions in Asia to provide security solutions for accessing its banking system.

ES e
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
THEHRS

Consistent achievement in IT solutions business

During the year, the Group's IT Solutions Business maintained good results. It was
successful in capturing the increasing demand for IT solutions from both private
and public sector customers. The Group secured various deals for the provision of
popular solutions in the industry, including business intelligence and enterprise
content management.

We have also made satisfactory progress in the security solutions business. Notably,
we succeeded in extending our market-proven security assessment services to
Macau by providing the Macau Education and Youth Affairs Bureau such services to
reduce the potential security risk as concerns its e-public services.

As regards the government policy to promote Cloud Computing with an aim to
facilitate the implementation of e-government services and our capabilities to support
Cloud Computing by providing reliable infrastructure, applications and related services,
the Group was further awarded a multi-million dollar Cloud Computing project in
December 2011 subsequent to the winning of a project relating to the provision

of a cloud platform with Geographical Information System (GIS) services to several
government departments in June 2011. The Group was responsible for the design,
supply, delivery, installation, implementation, commissioning, system support and
maintenance and other related services for a government department’s citizen-
centric information system which can assist 10 government departments effectively in
managing the public property for better public safety.

In addition, the Group's sizable turnkey or off-the-shelf solutions were widely adopted
by our key customers. In December 2011, the Group was awarded a multi-million
dollar tender from a government department to provide an integrated system,
which can assist the application process of financial subsidy to improve operational
efficiency. The Group was responsible for the design, supply, delivery, installation,
commissioning, maintenance of hardware and software and other related services.
The implementation and maintenance services of this project will last for several years
respectively and is expected to provide recurrent income to the Group in the future.

Managed services strategy achieved good results

During the year, the Group captured the opportunities from long-standing and major
customers covering different IT areas, different industry sectors and different regions. In
particular, our managed services made steady progress. The Group won some major
projects, including the continuous supply of complex and large-scale desk side and
server operations support to an international airline, together with the supply of several
thousands units of desktop computers for all of its offices in both Hong Kong and
mainland China; the provision of systems integration and managed services for the
operation of data centres of a government department; and the provision of managed
network support services for a Hong Kong-listed multinational apparel company for a
number of years to come. Apart from obtaining fruitful results in Hong Kong, the Group’s
managed services also extended to customers in other regions, included providing
multi-million dollar infrastructure managed services to a renowned bank in Thailand, a
bank with which our business relationship has already lasted for over a decade.

ASL is always committed to enhancing our service level. We have been awarded
with the ISO 20000 IT Service Management (ITSM) Certification from the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA) in December 2011 and became one of the few
[T companies to earn this accreditation. The scope of the 1SO 20000 certification
encompasses managed services, internal helpdesk and IT service support, which will
enable the Group's continuous development in managed services business.
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Persistent in offering outstanding IT infrastructure

Significant achievements were made in [T infrastructure business during the year. Recent
major contracts won by the Group included the storage system upgrade for a world-
renowned logistics company, as well as the firewall upgrade and security equipment
migration services for the aforesaid airlines. Outside Hong Kong, the Group also secured
an order for the provision of networking infrastructure and systems integration services
for Escola Sao Paulo, which demonstrates customers’ confidence in our abilities.

Outlook and Prospects

In order to cope with the future challenges in the market, we will continue to focus on
the expansion of the recurrent revenue-based business (such as managed services)
and strive for more sizable projects from customers of the public and private sectors.
In January 2012, the Group obtained a multi-million dollar contract from a financial
institution for the supply, implementation and maintenance of the operations support
systems at its newly-established data centre in Hong Kong, which was a fruition of our
earlier efforts towards actively looking into opportunities involving data centres.

In addition, the Group will continue to carry out our strategy in promoting various
kinds of solutions. By leveraging the advantages and leading position of i-Sprint

in the market, we will continue to facilitate the growth of the IT security solutions
business. i-Sprint has extensive experience and the expertise to implement
authentication solution in many renowned financial institutions in Asia Pacific,
and its platform supports multi-brand hardware token. In view of the regulatory
requirements for data management in Internet and Mobile banking in the market,
ASL launched a security project in January 2012 for the largest financial holding
company in Taiwan to provide a two factors authentication and transaction signing
token management platform. The project amount is one of the highest amongst
the Group's IT security business projects in Taiwan.

The Group will actively seize business opportunities arising from the future market
transition into the “Cloud Era”, including the provision of cloud infrastructure, data
centre service, systems integration and implementation, and consultancy service to
customers across the Asia Pacific region. In view of the Hong Kong Government's
strategy for establishing a government cloud environment progressively over

the next few years in order to support a new series of e-services applications to
enhance the quality of public services, the Group expects this policy will enable us
to further develop our cloud business.

Looking ahead, we will continue to implement cost-effective measures, strengthen
our services level and quality, establish stronger partnership alliances, and create
greater synergies with Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (the ultimate holding
company of the Group). The Group strongly believes that, by leveraging on our solid
foundation and excellence performance, we can offer innovative solutions and
services to customers for sustainable growth of our business.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2011, the Group's total assets of HK$909.2 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$369.0 million, non-current liabilities of HK$32.6
million and shareholders’ equity of HK$507.6 million. The Group had a working
capital ratio of approximately 1.73:1.

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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As at 31st December 2011, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$110.9 million (2010: HK$112.2 million).

The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings and investment properties
in an aggregate amount of HK$178.6 million (2010: HK$154.0 million) and
restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$0.9 million (2010: HK$1.9 million) for
banking facilities and performance bonds granted to the Group respectively. The
performance bonds issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts were
approximately HK$32.2 million as at 31st December 2011 (2010: HK$31.3 million).
The Group's gearing ratio was zero as at 31st December 2011 (2010: zero).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most of them are fixed

by reference to the respective countries' Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars (“US dollars”).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group will continue to be minimal as
long as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to link the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect. There was
no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and therefore no related
hedging financial instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December
2011 (nine months ended 31st December 2010: same).

After the acquisition of i-Sprint during the year, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from Singapore dollar (“SGD”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from recognised assets and liabilities. As at 31st December 2011, if SGD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been approximately HK$674,000 higher/
lower, mainly a result of the foreign exchange difference on translation of SGD
denominated liabilities.

To manage the foreign currency risk arising from SGD, the Group had entered
into forward exchange contracts. A gain of HK$21,000 (nine months ended
31st December 2010: nil) was recognised in the Group's consolidated income
statement.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2011, bank deposits held as security for banking facilities
and performance bonds amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million (2010: HK$1.9
million). At 31st December 2011, performance bonds of HK$32.2 million (2010:
HK$31.3 million) have been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44.6 million as at 31st December 2011 (2010:
HK$44.7 million). The amount utilised against goods supplied as at 31st December
2011 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was approximately HK$1.2
million (2010: HKS3.7 million).

Capital Commitment
As at 31st December 2011, the contracted capital commitments of the Group were
HK$0.4 million (2010: HK$0.4 million).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 22.2% and 6.2%,
respectively, of the Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 38.6% and 10.8%, respectively,
of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2011 did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has an interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2011, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,594
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group remunerates its employees based

on their performance, working experience and the prevailing market conditions.
Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include
mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share options scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 4th May 2012 to 9th
May 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 3rd May 2012. The dividend warrants will be despatched on or before 23rd May
2012.

2012 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on 26th April
2012, and the register of members of the Company will be closed from 23rd April
2012 to 26th April 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20th April
2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2011, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the review of the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
HUI Wing Choy, Henry

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15th March 2012
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Activity Highlights

AEIER

Jan — A 2011

ASL wins the Tst runner-up of ICT Cup in the 18th
Green Power Hike organized by the Green Power and
raises fund for environmental protection.
BBRAREREENERRNESEEZEN
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Mar = H 2011

ASL has successfully acquired the entire equity
interest of i-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd. in March 2011

to accelerate expansion in the Asia-Pacific region.
B 8) ZHEH201 1483 A B IH U BEi-Sprint Innovations
Pte. Lid8Y 2 EP R A A MR AR TEARE T 5

Mar = H 2011

ASL receives the “Enterprise Caring award” under
"Outstanding Volunteer Award Scheme” held by

the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council in
recognition of our efforts in social responsibility.

BB RGUERER (BT RE S 2 [ XA
B EATEUAEL ST EMELNER

Apr 9 A 2011

ASL receives the "Hero of Barrier-Free Award” in
recognition of its continuous commitment to employ
disabled people in its Digital Imaging Centre since 2002.
BB KRR [EEREEE] - 2T HE 52002
F-EXRHREABRRATIREBNEIFZEH
DITYEFEEMS S -

Mar = H 2011

ASL Macau introduces customers a SWIFT-compliant
authentication solution integrated with YESKEY and
i-Sprint.

BERGHRMD RRIMTFNABES T YESKEY
Rei-SprintH)sRRERRIR T 58 » 3% 77 BT & SWIFTESK

Jul £ A 2011

Senior executives of ASL pose a group photo at the
large-scale "ASL Security Solution Day 2011" event.
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Sep 71 A 2011

ASL Taiwan showcases advanced mobile security
solutions during the “Mobility Management and
Security Solution for Cloud computing” seminar.
BERAGNGEN QAR [ERTHERELE]
REIBWRELRTEEOBHLEHATER -

Oct + A 2011

ASL's security expert (right 3) awarded “BCl Asia
Business Continuity Awards — Business Continuity
Specialist of the Year (2011)" in October 2011.
BREGNREER (A=)R011F10AK
J& [BCI Asia Business Continuity Awards — Business
Continuity Specialist of the Year (2011) | #£15 »

Sep f1 A 2011

ASL Thailand participates in the 5th IT Golf
Tournament organized by Association of Securities
Companies to interact with partners and customers
on the latest IT solutions and golfing.
BREGHRED ARLNAREBSF R RBE
EROESE T AREE  WEP REBBH
RmEI B AR RT RRBRRROG -

Nov +— H 2011

ASL Guangzhou participates in the 13th China Hi-
Tech Fair to introduce the data center managed
services.

BBEGHEMND AR NEES RS
MBEMARR S G NABBTOERRS-

Activity Highlights
EETER

Oct + A 2011

ASL joins the Work Life Balance Day 2011 to raise the
staff's awareness of work-life balance. This is the 2nd
consecutive year for ASL's participation.

BE RS20 EFETIEFER - BRI
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Dec += A 2011

Mr. Henry Hui (left), CEO of ASL, receives ISO 20000

IT Service Management Certification from the Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency.
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERNEZEEZRH

HONG KONG CUSTOMER
BRBEF

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

Government B fF

A government department

— BT BB

Provision of design, supply, delivery, installation, commissioning, maintenance of
hardware and software and other related services for an integrated system which
can assist the application process of financial subsidy to improve operational
efficiency

—(EARBEERFUIEENNERES ZR  RERG R HE EX-
8 B R AVRE I R A R B AR B AR TS DATR T B B AR

A government department

— BT BB

A multi-million dollar computer system upgrade project for the launch of the new
public services for the residents of Hong Kong and Macau
—HEEHEETHNEMAGRAER UEAELEEERERNE
RS

A government department

— BT BB

A multi-million dollar cloud computing project for the provision of design,

supply, delivery, installation, implementation, commissioning, system support
and maintenance and other related services for an information system which can
assist 10 government departments effectively in managing the public property for
better public safety

—HEERABELEWERZER R EAEARMREHR HEE
E R Eit - S BASUR R &Ei\ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬂwk LM;?;’;E)J‘HIE&W
WRABROE B RAAME U RRE

A government department

— BT BB

A cloud solution project for the provision of system analysis, design and
configurations, enabling the government department to provide other
government bureaus and departments in need of Geographical Information
System (GIS) services with the requisite services and applications on this cloud
platform

—EmBORTRIAR CIRHEERSN Rt RECE - BULBUFEPI AT E B
EimF BB E R H AT 2 IR E A R LGRS K & A2 X BT #E
K EBPIHR it PR 3 B0 AR 7

A government department

Provision of systems integration and management services for the operation of an

— BT AR e-government platform for data centres of a government department
AR 2 BT OEBIENE TR TG - REEREX R EE RS

A statutory entity Supply, delivery, installation, commissioning and maintenance of enterprise

— (&= servers and storage system and the provision of other related services

REPEERARER T REIRMEME cr i A R A
it A2 A AR 75
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HONG KONG CUSTOMER
BRBEF

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFBZEEZSK

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

Education % &

A renowned university

—EHRE

Provision of storage and backup solution

T RBDBRT R

A famous university

—EHARE

Provision of software maintenance

T i R TS

Financial Services and Insurance & &t R 5 & 1% &

A Chinese owned bank based in Hong Kong
—BAEE BB T BIRIT

Provision of i-Sprint's credential and access management solutions with token

authentication management as well as maintenance, onsite support, consultancy

and training services
REFSpInBERBEABTRRATR KB INREE
i I% - B RERE

TR LAR v

Telecommunications £ &

Hutchison Global Communications Limited

MRERKEAERR

Building a business intelligence reporting platform for comprehensive data

analysis and efficient decision-making

FEAVASES

BREME T & EFABUR D T R A MHDRE

Transportation & &

An international airline
—REBMEAT

Continuous supply of complex and large-scale desk side and server operations

support and the supply of several thousands units of desktop computers for all of

its offices in both Hong Kong and Mainland China

SERHEMIAENRE R ARMRBEREERS TETERSD

BAMREFPAARAZHEARTANE LEHK

A world-renowned logistics company

—RERMBHYIRA A

A storage system upgrade project

—HERERITRIAR

General Commerce B ¥

A Hong Kong-listed multinational apparel company

—RKEBLTEBERKRKEE

The provision of managed network support services for a number of years to come

RHERBEZFNEEBRESERS
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFBZEEZSK

OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
"BINEF

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

Mainland China B A its

A leading international bank

—RELNBEBRIRT

Provision of support and maintenance services on security infrastructure for its
offices in major cities in China

REPALN R B X BT R ERAR L EZ R SRR EERT

A subsidiary of a renowned public transport operator

in Hong Kong

—REAELALEREEDOMNE LR

Provision of management of all IT applications and infrastructure managed
services and the provision of helpdesk services for its Shenzhen data center
EHEEBEFPNAINEBIEP OAENEARSERAIE RERERT
5 WK & RF

A well-known tobacco company
—RERZEEAT

A security solution project with the provision of i-Sprint software which will be of
benefit to the customer in accessing its identity and password information

— BB Z2MIRFRIAR RMHE-SpintE i EEFERTIMREE
)& 1) TS

A commercial bank

—REERT

A security solution project in relation to the supply of i-Sprint software for the bank
to strengthen the internal control of its internal applications

— AR R EATRIER - HEE-Sprint X - AN EE P N EE
AR o R ELEs 1

Macau # g

Escola Sao Paulo
BREBER

Provision of networking infrastructure and systems integration services

REPREZRAREXRE

Macau Education and Youth Affairs Bureau

BEAREESTFR

Provision of IT security assessment services to reduce potential security risk as
concerns its e-public services

RHEEMBRZ 2T ERBARETFEFARREOEEL ZRER
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OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
"BHNEF

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFBZEEZSK

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

Taiwan & &

TransGlobe Life Insurance Inc.

E2HRABRBROERAA

Provision of i-Sprint security solution
FRRi-Sprintf) Z 2 R R 7 &

One of the largest financial institutions in Asia

DM —RERSEEE

Provision of i-Sprint security solution
FRARI-Sprintf) Z & R R 7 &

Thailand =&

A reowned bank in Thailand
ZE—BEZRTT

A multi-million dollar project for the provision of managed services on IT
infrastructure for its branches in 76 provinces nationwide on a multi-year basis
—EAREHEETHNIER RIRTEMEZEL T RELHDTHEN
RHEER  RHZFOEBRRSE

Malaysia 553 74 58

An advisory body of the Malaysian Government

— 5 R PO R IR AT BRI R

A pilot project contract. Upon completion of the project, the proposed solution
will become a pre-approved IT security solution which would be available to other
government departments

B EAMIER AL - HE TR TSR R RESEL
WE AR R L 2RI R AR T E AR E8 P i A

Singapore 37 i3

A Singapore governmental body

—F IR BT

Supply of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix products for the protection of e-government
applications which support millions of users

HFEi-Sprint J T A AccessMatrixEE i MR E X BB A B EFAFPHNET
BT FERER
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Profile of Directors

EE=HN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #1 {TE& =

Mr. LAl'Yam Ting, Ready

Vice Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors

Aged 58

Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976

Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 2002 to 2011
General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the Group from
1991 to 2002

Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as a Director of the
Company in 1997

EAREBSEZEERE

BRERTN\B
R—NERFREERBERBRXKRE HHEE
(RB)8+ 8

N _FE5 T —FR/ARRFZITHREE,
R AN—FEZT_FRFAEEMIEBE
B
R=NAEREMBREERR - NN FES
EREARTZES

Mr. HUI Wing Choy, Henry
APoxBA R

Chief Executive Officer of the Company

Aged 46

Graduated from the Oregon State University in the United States
of America with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering in 1991 and a Master of Science Degree in
Computer and Electronic Engineering in 1994

Former Senior Vice President of Sales, Hong Kong, Macau

& Mainland China at Automated Systems (H.K) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company

Joined the Group in 1994 and appointed as a Director of the
Company in 2011

RRBZTHAR

BEM 758

EEREHEBBBMMIRE R—-—Ah—F
ERRERNREFIREZEELBUEN
—“NNAMOFERFRERNE T TREBLEEM
BRADARZMBRAIBB RS (FB)BRL
AREE RFIRPENBHE S REIER
RANEEMBARERR T ——FEER
ERRRAZES

Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
pZUN

Aged 51

Graduated from the California State University, Long Beach, the
United States of America with a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Business Computer Method and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration

Appointed as a senior advisor acting on behalf of the Company
with Beijing Teamsun Technology Co, Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the
ultimate holding company of the Group in 2011

Executive director of Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd, a
subsidiary of Teamsun

Chairman of i-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd. and a director of
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. and i-Sprint Technologies Sdn.
Bhd. All the above companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company

Director and the co-founder of AsiaSoft Company Limited

Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

BER+—5%
BERIEMMNMNIAERES R  FHELH
B EEELEMRIPERBELT SN0

R ——FRZERREARDAIEI RER
REEHERD AR AR ([EBRK]) 8= R
B (EBRKAAEE 2 HEERAF)
ERREZWBRARRRBIRAR AR ZHIT
s

ANR Tz 2% B A Ali-Sprint Innovations Pte.
Ltd.Z ZE J& BA Ki-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd &
i-Sprint Technologies Sdn. Bhd 2 E %

AsiaSoft Company Limited 8 3 38 3£ [F 81l 3 A
RIZTENFRZARARAZES
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Profile of Directors

B[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #1 {TE& =

Mr. LAU Ming Chi, Edward
2R ELE

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company ~ AAFR 2B KAERAANE

o Aged49 o HRFENTNBR

e Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as Lingnan o R/ \MFEXREMBR (REBEMA
University) with a Honours Diploma in Accountancy in 1984 2) BEFHEREE

e Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified o BAGHMAGZE®E
Public Accountants o HERHAREGHMAGZEREE

e Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified o R—ANANEMBEAEERR-—NN+FEZ
Accountants in the United Kingdom FARARARZES

e Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as a Director of the
Company in 1997

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS IEH {TE S

Mr. HU Liankui
HRESE ZE S A

Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors EARNESEZER

o Aged6l o WFENT—BH

e Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC with a Master's o EERFTEBFEAZ HAERIBELSN
Degree in Management Engineering o ERRKIEERRESF

e Chairman and director of Teamsun o IREBBRBEARARESER"

e Chairman of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd.* o IFRERBRHE (HBROHIUEEARNBLZSM

e Independent director of China Distance Education Holdings W zBIES
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the New York Stock o RIZETENFREZARKRRAICES
Exchange

e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

Mr. WANG Weihang
EHEMEE

o Aged45 o RFMTIBR

o Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC and from the o BENFEBFERZRHBENNIASELHE
Information and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang FIRER SR REBRAETIRER
University, PRC with an Executive Master's Degree in Business T 207 R B BN T T BT £ 2
Administration and a Master's Degree in Semi-Conductor o ERANCIAEERFLHLES
Materials and Microelectronic Technology respectively o AEBEEZERAREBRIAKEE (FE)AR

e Vice chairman and president and director of Teamsun NRAME—ESF

e Sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited, the o RITTNFETEAUHTEBSERFEK
immediate holding company of the Group HEEG/LECERRTERUGEENDAY

o Awarded as # B ¥ 2 3 45 Hi (B 3 5K (China Software o RITE——FERE[PEIBAIFGEDAY
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate®) and # B #X %]

1 EZ N E) AW (China Software Industry Prestige Award o RIEZBNFREZERLRRFIZES
Laureatef) by China Software Industry Association in 2009

e Awarded the Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese
Brand Award'in 2011

e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009
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Profile of Directors

B/

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EH{TEE

O

Mr. CHEN Zhaohui
BeR B B 4 A=

o Aged35

e Graduated from Peking University, PRC with a Master's Degree
in Business Administration

e Appointed as the chairman of Teamsun (China) Financial
Leasing Co, Ltd, a subsidiary of Teamsun in February 2012

e Former chief financial officer of Teamsun

e Certified public accountant (intermediate level) of the PRC

e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B Y EHITE S

RE=TAOR

EENPEILRAE FEIHERRLEM
WNZT——F - ARZERERBRK (FE) &
EMEBARAR (MEBRRNMBAR) 2E

2
LREBRK W BB
R ARG RTA

RIZEENFEZERARAZES

Ms. YOUNG Meng Ying
A=l +
BRIt
e Aged54
e Graduated from University of South Australia, Australia and
Monash University, Australia with a Bachelor's Degree in

Business Administration Management and a Master's Degree in

Practising Accounting respectively
e Director of Sun & Young Business Advisory Limited

e Certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified

BER TR

£ 2PN R A 2 OB M Monash University *
ADRARBAEINERST BN RRESHELT
2y

B EBAERANES

BERGIHRAG ZRNEGA

NG FHAI R B E FETAD

Public Accountants KRBT ERITRABRAEEE
o Certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia BENEMAEREEESBHALREEZE
e Associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and ggs8
Administrators NR_ETNFREZEAARRZES
e Committee member of the Public Practice Committee with
CPA Australia - Hong Kong China Division
e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009
Mr. LU Jiagi
= 1k
FERR A
o Aged6l RERT 5%

e Graduated from Huazhong Institute of Technology (currently
known as Huazhong University of Science and Technology),
PRC and Tsinghua University, PRC with a Bachelor's Degree
in Engineering and a Master's Degree in Management
Engineering respectively

e  Chairman and managing director of Pearl River Distribution
Limited

e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

FENPEEDTER (RBAETHMERAR)
RABEBERB HHKETIRRABLEMR
ERTIRAT B0
RITEREEARRAESRFAKLRE
R-EZNFRZERARFZES
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Profile of Directors

B[N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B IEHTEE

Ms. XU Peng
mER L

o Aged55 o HRFRTHMR
e PRClawyer o HEEAM
e Received education at the Civil, Commercial and Economic o RIZETNFEPEBUERNBREEEE20
Law School of the China University of Political Science and Law EREBEE2HEERRERE
and completed #4775 A 2 B R ERIE (the postgraduate o L RIEEEMEBHEETREEA
program of economic law#) in 2009 o HFEARBAHEEZILERTHAGEE T —/E
e Officer and partner of Beijing Hengde Law Firm Z8g%8
e Committee member of the 11th National Committee of the o JLEMAMBEES
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Chaoyang o JtEmHEREMBEER
District of Beijing o RITETENFREZAAARFIZES

e Supervisor of Beijing Municipal Law Association
e Vice President of Beijing Chaoyang District Lawyers Association

e Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

#  For identification purpose only 4 f2ELER

*  The Chinese name of Beijing Huasun MingtianTechnology Co. ~ * 3t REBKBARHRBRET A RINH X BB
Ltd. has been corrected from 3t RERIERAEHET AR EER BIERIREBBRABRBRRAE
Aot REBBABEARAA.
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Corporate Governance Report
/\ YNV /\—A— \
315& =

EXRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying
and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its

business.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
("Principles”) and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most
of the Code Provisions save for deviation from the Code Provisions in respect of
Code Provision A4.1, details of which are explained below. The Company regularly
reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet

the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (“Board”)

in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and

accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are

summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities
The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of

functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the

Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including:
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and
overall corporate structure, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and

operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board

procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Z’S//:\\ wuﬂﬁﬁ%Zﬂi%E/Dﬁzﬁ T%ﬁ EZE
T WTHBEESE N WERKSIEY & EEBKS
B EERTH

ARRZEEERFRNDEREEHREIIMER
AR (TEERA)) B EmR RN (T EmRRIL) Kigx14
BOlzREREARTA ([REREETA] M#EZ
JRANCTERAN]) B sy GRS (57 RIS ) i HI5E © A
RBEE T A TRES - HElRBET BRI E AL
G2 RE  ARAFBEN T XME - AQRERRS
EAEERAER URREETSLEEATRZ
HIE

AARRAEEFRE ([EFg ) DEEE2A/E
BARTIRMAE WEG RIS WHERTA FEHE
FISEREREEE-

ARF 2 TELRERRILERBLMT

Exg

BE

AR AR ERHIERIRNE BMELES 2 Wi E
E AREEEATRERETERBORE

EEeREALAGRERRBRR LS BK
REERED ERARFZAEER AHERE
BE-

EFeRBUHAARMAEEREEZATERE  B1F:
HERERBRLRR EAREROEREEE K
%%ﬁ REBRERHE EXZH (FHIZAES K

NaBRzRH) UBEH EFERLAGMEE
%ﬁ&%@%ﬂo

% EYRREKBRE—IEHEER  URE
SRNAMEZERRRE HEUEBRREFTIHFRE
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the

abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior

management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience necessary for

independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready
(Vice Chairman of the Board, Member of Management Committee and
Investment Committee)'
Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry
(Chief Executive Officer, Member of Management Committee and
Investment Committee)?
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
(Member of Management Committee and Investment Committee)?
Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward
(Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Member of

Management Committee)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hu Liankui
(Chairman of the Board and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Weihang
(Chairman of Management Committee and Investment Committee)
Mr. Chen Zhaohui

(Member of Audit Committee and Management Committee)

Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

BEEg

BE )

REEBRT SHE—BTREESREER )
FAARRY ABMABTHESR -
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eHtE-
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HROEEHHR
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERBRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms.Young Meng Ying
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lu Jiaqi
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Xu Peng
(Member of Audit Committee)

1. Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready resigned as the Chief Executive Officer and was appointed as the
Vice Chairman effective 1st December 2011. He remains as an Executive Director of the

Company.

2. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as an Executive Director and succeeded Mr.
Lai as the Chief Executive Officer. He was also appointed as a member of respective
committees, all with effect from 1st December 2011.

3. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon ceased to be the Chief Operating Officer effective 1st
December 2011. He remains as an Executive Director of the Company.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from Ms. Young Meng Ying,
Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng of their independence pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers them to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. Ms. Xu Peng will
offer herself for re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and by

a separate resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board

recommended her re-election as Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring

a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs
of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict

of interests and serving on Board committees, all the Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors make various contributions to the effective

direction of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for

the appointment of directors.

Code Provision A4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed

for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific term. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of

the Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement

by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to

fill a casual vacancy or as additional director shall be subject to re-election by

shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing

the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements

of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when

necessary.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry, having
been appointed as a Director of the Company during the year, shall retire and
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the first general meeting after the
appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting). In addition, Mr,
Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen Zhaohui and Ms. Xu Peng shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming annual general

meeting contains detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Corporate Governance Report
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TEERBRE

THE BOARD (continued) %%g (&)

Training for Directors =Yl

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored BENMEEFHREREZEREREE2E  FX R
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she MEBNESHIEZ E‘JEHE&EFE% HRFESUHEE
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company BRAQNFEBREE WD THREARE WK
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the EpS& =l 72%%233@%;@? o

Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and ARABER R ERTHRNESRERESRLE
professional development to Directors whenever necessary. FERE -

Board and Committee Meetings EESREFESER

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance 2R REFL AL

The Board has four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on other EEeRNEBFTHRETNASH THEREREER
occasions as needed. MEMEERITEIGE -

Six Board meetings in total were held during the year. RAFRERITNAEESEHE-

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, REE-_T——F+_A=+—HLFE TEF
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee during the year ended 31st REZG FTHNZEEGRERZETER 2T
December 2011 is set out below: fﬁf%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ—F :

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHANHE SETEBRY

Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHR g FHEES ERZEE®
Executive Directors HITES

Lai Yam Ting, Ready FEE T 6/6 N/A N/A
TiE A @A
Hui Wing Choy, Henry ' FT KB 0/0 N/A N/A
TEA TEA
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon RIENH 6/6 N/A N/A
TEA T A
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 288 % 6/6 N/A N/A
TiE A TEA

Non-Executive Directors FHMITES
Hu Liankui HRRE 5/6 1/1 N/A
TEA
Wang Weihang T #Efin 4/6 N/A N/A
TEA T A
Chen Zhaohui e 5/6 N/A 4/4

AE A
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)
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EEERBME

BEE®
EESREESSER )
BHNUREELENY ()

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHALE SETEHERH

Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENE B FHEES EREEY
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUYKHTES
Young Meng Ying 15 m Bt 5/6 11 3/4
Lu Jiagi B = 1 6/6 1/1 4/4
Xu Peng "% 6/6 N/A 4/4
TEA
1. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as a Director effective 1st December 2011. 1. X EEEETAES W22 ——F+=A—H

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee

meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate

and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final

version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company's Bye-
laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such

Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and

authority.

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are currently held
by Mr. Hu Liankui and Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry (who succeeded Mr. Lai Yam Ting,
Ready effective 1st December 2011) respectively. Their respective responsibilities

are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the

support of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely

manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company's
day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board's

approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee, Management Committee and Investment Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board committees of
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's website and/or

are available to all shareholders when requested.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time

to facilitate the Company's operations.
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BOARD COMM'TTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying and Mr. Lu Jiagi. Mr. Hu

Liankui is the chairman of the Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and

conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on

remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st

December 2011. The works performed included the following:
(@) Toreview Executive Directors’ remuneration package.
(b)  Toreview Executive Directors’ service agreements.

(c)  Toreview matters concerning share options.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Chen Zhaohui and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng,
among them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Ms. Young Meng Ying is the chairman of the Committee. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing

external auditors.
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EERRE

BOARD COMM'TTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a)

To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor or external

auditors before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and

removal of external auditors.

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system and

associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December

2011.The works performed included the following:

(a)

(e)

To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and

compliance procedures.

To review the reports from the external auditors, management letters and

management response.

To review corporate governance matters.

To review the matters in relation to the internal control system and internal

audit.

To review the re-appointment of the external auditor.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding

the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31st December 2011 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMM'TTEES (Continued)

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen Zhaohui and
four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry,
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon and Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward. Mr. Wang Weihang

is the chairman of the Management Committee. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was
appointed as a member of the Management Committee effective 1st December
2011,

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company's day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the

related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises Mr. Wang Weihang and three Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry and Mr.
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Investment
Committee. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as a member of the

Investment Committee effective 1st December 2011

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when

required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2011.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-

sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly results, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other

regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2011.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s

Report” on page 47.

The non-audit work performed by the external auditors, Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers includes advisory services. The remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit services,
audit-related services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st December
2011 amounted to approximately HK$2,224,000, HK$320,000 and HK$48,000

respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review

the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority designed to achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant rules and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the

Company's objectives.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Board in particular considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and

financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions
at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of
such rights to demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to

shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and posted on the

website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication

between the shareholders and the Board.

The Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent Board committee, are

available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial

issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with

its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.
To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at http//www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the

Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,

corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15th March 2012
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Directors’ Report
SESHS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31st December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its associates and subsidiaries are
set out in notes 23 and 48, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2011 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 49.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5.5 HK cents per
share. The proposed dividend will be paid to the shareholders on the register of
members on 9th May 2012, amounting to HK$17,127,000, and the remaining profit

be retained for the year ended 31st December 2011.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 4th May 2012 to 9th
May 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 3rd May 2012. The dividend warrants will be despatched on or before 23rd May
2012

2012 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on 26th April
2012, and the register of members of the Company will be closed from 23rd April
2012 to 26th April 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20th April
2012

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 54 to
55 of the consolidated financial statements.

At 31st December 2011, the Group's special reserve and accumulated profits
totalled HK$286,597,000 (2010: HK$254,192,000).

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the shareholders at 31st
December 2011 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling

HK$109,907,000 (2010: special reserve net of accumulated losses HK$85,935,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group spent approximately
HK$8,187,000 (Nine months ended 31st December 2010: HKS$11,040,000) on
property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December
2011 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers

and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 22.2% and 6.2%,
respectively, of the Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 38.6% and 10.8%, respectively,

of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2011 did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have an

interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2011 in share capital of the

Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2011 and up

to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Hui Wing Choy, Henry (appointment effective 1st December 2011)
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Non-Executive Directors
Hu Liankui

Wang Weihang

Chen Zhaohui

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Young Meng Ying

Lu Jiaqi

Xu Peng
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Dl RECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 99, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen
Zhaohui and Ms. Xu Peng shall be retiring by rotation. In addition, Mr. Hui

Wing Choy, Henry, being Director appointed by the Board during the year,

shall hold office only until the first general meeting after the appointment (i.e.
the forthcoming annual general meeting) pursuant to the Company's Bye-law
102(B). All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the Non-Executive Directors is the period up to his

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of

Directors of the Company are set out below:

Name of Director Detail of changes

EEgR BEFE

EE

IRBADNE Y A TR B0NE - F MRS - BREANE
S RGEL LB RRESE - Mo FFAR SR
REBEETARATES  BIEATMAE020)15
HEAEARERENERREAS FEE (R
BEBEAS) -FEREEEHABEHELEENE
EREEEAS - BEEL

EABBRZBRRFAG LREREE2EEN
BREAQRHEMBABTIAEE TR —FA
RINEEE OREMERN) TRABRIEZRBEL -

REARBZARMA FFRTEEZZEFHR
HE=HESRZH-

EHEEEHR
BE ERHRAE135BMIK ARBEFER 2
FHINT

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

the Board, all with effect from 1st December 2011.

BEE BALBEARRATREHTEELZERE

Mr. Lai resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and has been appointed as the Vice Chairman of

BEIEE EHR-B——F+-A—BERER-

Pursuant to the service contract newly entered into between Mr. Lai and the Company, Mr. Lai has been

appointed for a term of 13 months from 1st December 2011 (the “Service Period”). His directorship is subject

to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the

Hui Wing Choy, Henry

FEoKE

Company's Bye-laws. In accordance with the abovementioned service contract, Mr. Lai will be entitled to a basic
salary of HK$1,000,000 and bonus payments for the Service Period. Mr. Lai's remuneration was determined by
reference to his duties and responsibilities, experience, performance and market conditions.
RIBREEEARNRRUNFRBAR BEENEPRRT=MA BT ——F+-A—HR (R
BH) - R EFBBEBRBEARTDNABUZRERRRBFEASHESREREE - BIF LAORE
AR BEERBREIHANZE ZEARE M A1,0000008 T RAEL -BEEZHHH2EERERE
&5 REEHAMERE -

Mr. Hui has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company. He has also
been appointed as a member of the Company’s Management Committee and the Investment Committee, all

with effect from 1st December 2011.

HRERRERARRATRARLATES -FRENMEZERARFERZEGRREZEGN

B 2R —_E—F+_-_A—HBHIERAEWK-
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Directors’ Report

EZEHE

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION (Continued) EHEEER @)

Name of Director

EEnE

Detail of changes

BEFHE

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Wang Weihang
T4

Chen Zhaohui

PR BA 1E

Xu Peng
wiE

Pursuant to the service contract newly entered into between Mr. Hui and the Company, Mr. Hui has been
appointed for a term of 3 years from 1st December 2011. His directorship is subject to retirement at the next
following general meeting (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting) pursuant to the Company's Bye-

laws at which time he will be eligible for re-election. Thereafter, he will be subject to retirement by rotation

and re-election at annual general meetings pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the
abovementioned service contract, Mr. Hui will be entitled to an annual basic salary of HK$3,300,000 and
performance related incentive payment, the computation of which is based on measurable performance
contribution of the Group. Mr. Hui's remuneration was determined by reference to his duties and responsibilities,
experience, performance and market conditions.

BREBEFFEERRRNRILORBER FEENTHRA=F BE-T——F+ A —Bi-FF%
ERBREBEARABUETEABUEERN TERRAG (MEERREFAE) FRERILE &
FE AR E EREEEE - B8 BRENREBFERE LinEREREE - RIE LMHREER - 7F
FEZZR T FERFR33000008 7T A K EBKRINE R 2 RENIEAL  ZAEALIIRIBAERE 2 Al
ERFABRMAE -FREZHFHH2ZEEBBLEL KB KBELTRMERTE -

Commencing from 1st December 2011, Mr. Leung has ceased to be the Chief Operating Officer. He has been
appointed as a senior advisor acting on behalf of the Company to synergise the Company’s global business
strategy with Beijing Teamsun Technology Co. Limited (“Teamsun”), the Company’s ultimate controlling
shareholder . Mr. Leung reports directly to the Board. In addition, Mr. Leung has also been appointed as an
executive director of Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd. (“Pansky”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamsun,
effective from 1st February 2012.

BE-Z——F1+-A—AR REETEREBLEET RELACDEZARRKARFNSHRER -
WA AR BB IREB R AR A RLIER AT REBRREBROARAR (TEBRK])
BEER - REEEERNEEFSER WM BEENEZEREB AR ZERENBARIRXR
MEARAR (RRDTESF R-T-——_F - —HEER-

Pursuant to the service contract previously entered into between Mr. Leung and the Company, Mr. Leung has
been appointed for a term of 3 years from 1st January 2011. His directorship is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr.
Leung is entitled to an annual basic salary of HK$2,112,000 and performance related incentive payment, the
computation of which is based on measurable performance contribution of the Group. Mr. Leung’s remuneration
was determined by reference to his duties and responsibilities, experience, performance and market conditions.
BEREARHEARRVORBER REANERA=F B -_T——F—A—HE K2
EERBABBRRRBAUZREXNBRBAFRGHESRREE - REEREZEFFELRTFNE
2,112,000 TTIA R BRI B B 2 HENEAL R EADIRBREB A ERAERMMAE - REE 2
FHO2ZERBLET KB KRRETRAMERE -

Mr.Wang was awarded an “Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese Brand Award".

FRAKE[TERMBAFELAYE] -

Mr. Chen ceased to be the chief financial officer of Teamsun. On 13th February 2012, Mr. Chen was transferred to
the position of chairman for Teamsun (China) Financial Leasing Co,, Ltd. a subsidiary of Teamsun

PREAESE AT B REB RN LV BRE - REFNR T —_F_AT+=HA2HKFAEREBRK (H
I REHEERARIZESR ZARREBRK ZMBAFR -

Ms. Xu has been appointed as Vice President of Beijing Chaoyang District Lawyers Association.

BEUTHERIERTHGERM RIS K-
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year, the Group paid service fees of HK$4,783,000 to AsiaSoft Services
Limited, a subsidiary of AsiaSoft Company Limited (“AsiaSoft") for the provision
of software engineering outsourcing services. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon is
interested in the transactions by virtue of his directorship and shareholding in
AsiaSoft.

Other than as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31st December 2011 or at any time during

the year ended 31st December 2011.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), during
the year ended 31st December 2011, the following Directors were considered to
have interests in the businesses which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set

out below:

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete
or likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

EECEHNRER

FR AL E B IR E SN E T2 AR 78 M AsiaSoft
Company Limited ([ AsiaSoft ] ) 2 B & 22 &) AsiaSoft
Services Limited S < AR75 #4,783,000/& 7T ° RIEH e
TIERERAsiaSoft cEE B D RIREMRZER 5T
A -

REBEE-Z——F+-A=+—"BILFEHEEHNK
EIESFEA - B DRI [BER S | FREEEIN -
BEEHERARR HEMERAR  ARMBEAR
B RRMAILEHARREEMEREEE 2
EHTHEAENERSME I ERE S -

EERNGFRB RS
REBBMEXZAARDT ([BFT])FEF LT
RA (T ETREN) FE0EHRE REE-T——F
TZA=ZT—HLEFER UTEERRRERER
fil 322 70 B AN 2 ) SR T A I3 T S P AR B N R I T
BREF2EBTHREE D HFBHINWT:

Description of businesses of the entities
which were considered to compete or likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entities

Name of Director RAEXEEXBERR RAEXEEXBERR EERZEERL
BEEnA TREBHGE2ERER ARG R ER 2 K EREE
Hu Liankui Teamsun Information technology product service, Chairman and director
application software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
LS FE R BB E RS - E AR BT EERERES
RESHEHMERES
Beijing Huasun Mingtian Information technology related Chairman
Technology Co. Ltd.*
ERFBBABMKEELR HEEMBHX Bk
Subsidiaries of Teamsun Information technology related Director
(excluding Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”))
ERERK 2B LRE HEE R Bx
(PEIEEB R
(BB)BRATF

(IBEBEBRK]))
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

(Continued)

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete
or likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group

Description of businesses of the entities
which were considered to compete or likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group

EER

Directors’ Report

EZEHE

KBRS @

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entities

Name of Director RAEXEEXBERR RAEXEEXBERR EERREERC

BEEnA TREBHSE2ERER ARG R ER 2 BT ERMEE

Wang Weihang Teamsun Information technology product service, Vice chairman and president,
application software development, value-added director, and substantial
distribution and system integration shareholder

T4 FERBRK BRI EMRY ERAEARERE HE BEFRFLIE EER

Hong Kong Teamsun

FBEBRK

Subsidiaries of Teamsun
(excluding Hong Kong

DHEEERES

Window company of Teamsun in Hong Kong and
mainly provides administrative support to the
clients of Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong

EBFRKEEBENRAR FEREB IR
BERRPEREBRMITBE

Information technology related

Teamsun)
ERBERKZWELR (TBE MEEMAEHR
EBEBRK)
Leung Tat Kwong, Pansky Information technology related
Simon
RiEN EEN AR
AsiaSoft and its subsidiaries Information technology related
AsiaSoft & E Fft B8 2 7] A AR
* The Chinese name of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd. has been corrected *

from It REBBRBRBEREFER A o L REFHBRERBER QAL

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of

carrying on its business independently of, and at arm's length from, the businesses

of the aforesaid companies.

TERR

Sole director

M—E=E

Director

5=

Director
HE

Director and/or substantial
shareholder

BER/REERR

IEREBERMEZEREELRNF XEHEREE
RUARFEBERRRERAF -

HREEFSBUN LMARZEETERIA LEER
BEHESS AEETBHYN ERRRZEBIA
RNPEFEARREERR-

41



42

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 3 £ B A 2 7 | Annual Report 2011 4 3%

Directors’ Report

ETEHE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors and

chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures

of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV

of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or () were required,

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

("Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:

EEZRORERRKRNG 2ES

RZB——F+_A=+—H EERARAEE
THRABRART REEMBREE (EEREFS
MEAEEBIEXVER) 2t - ARG REHPER
()R R 78 5 I A & 0] SEXVEL 7 8D #h /A &1 &
ARRI Rz EmRAR (BEREES R
BRI 2B BIECEEER AR RTEE 2 m Bk
B OIRIE B F REE GO F3528BE R %
Pl 2 B e R e ok A Sk(QIRIR E T EAT
AEFHTESF R ZHEESPR (MELE<PA]) A
EARRNAIRBRT 2w RAR([ESZRD RE
By 2 ] ) a0 T

(@) Shares (R) &4
Personal Family  Corporate Approximate %
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total of shareholding
NREH Bz BAEE  RKEE OARER Hit st REBNED L
Automated Systems Holdings Lai Yam Ting, Ready 3,949,621 - - 3949621 1.27%
Limited
BYEREEBRAT BER
Hui Wing Choy, Henry 150,000 - - 150,000 =0.00%
I
Automated Systems (HK) Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000' - - - 1,070,000 N/A?
Limited
BEIEM (FE)ERAA BER TEA
Teamsun Hu Liankui 25352963 - - 25352963 4.66%
EBRK [ilES
Wang Weihang 53810630 - - - 53810630 9.90%
T#m
Chen Zhaohui 330,000° - - 330,000 0.06%

REAE



Annual Report 2011 € 3§ | Automated Systems Holdings Limited £ &) Rt £ B AR A &

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
(b) Underlying shares

Directors’ Report

ETEHE

EEZROREERD 2ERE @
() HERAD

Personal Family  Corporate
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total
NRER = B AR RikERE  ARER Hith @t
Teamsun Chen Zhaohui 990,000 - - - 990,000
EBERK R 3 i
Notes: Bt 5

1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares.

2. The issued shares of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprised 55,350,000
non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 ordinary shares were

beneficially owned by the Company.

3. Mr. Chen Zhaohui disposed 330,000 shares of Teamsun in 2011, which was

recorded in the register after 31st December 2011.

4. These shares were subject to a 1-year lock-up pursuant to & 2% A& & Eh =
2| (B %) of Teamsun, vesting in 4 years from 27th July 2011 subject to the
fulfillment of certain conditions set out in & EARZ BN At 2] (B %) .

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2011, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 16th October
1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any employee and/
or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Scheme was terminated
and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to

a resolution passed in the general meeting held on 8th August 2002 in order to
comply at the time with the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which
became effective on 1st September 2001. Details of the Scheme and the New
Scheme are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted under the New Scheme during the year ended 31st
December 2011. There was no share option outstanding at 31st December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during the year
ended 31st December 2011 was the Company, or any of its holding companies

or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

L HEROABREREEER-

2. BRRG(BEB)ARARZEHITRERE
55,350,0000% £ 1% 224 i AT AR R 0% i AR o 5%2
IR BIRB AR A B ©

3. PR A K 50 A 7 = F — —F 1 5330,00008 ZE 5K
KD X GR - E——F+_A=+—H
et B R mA -

4. REFEBRROERREREE(ER)
HZERMEE —FREHRY REAH-F
——FtAZt+TEHABRANSF WEAFHKE
R SERTE (E5) E TIRFEERE
TR

B EXPrEN R_B——F+-A=+—H #
BEZERARAIBTRABRBEAES 2RO
NARRIR D 2 #E 2

BT E

ARBR—ANEF+ AT RNBRNBRETS
(IZ&TE])  EEAARRBHEMEMBER R ZE
MEE R, SEFRUERRER - Z LK
I IRER-ZZ2-FNAANBRTZRERE
BB ORBERRMFTIB RSB ([FEH81)) - A
NEEHLETRAETLEZET(A-TT—F
LA —BBAERR) - %t & RS 2 M EF TR
iR A B TS AR R3S ©

RBE-_T——FT_A=+T—HLFERN 1K
RFtERHEMBERE - R_T——F+ A
=t+— B WEERERITEZERE-

EERERODIES 2ER

B EX [ES 2 iy KRR D 2 fEaa ] I [ RBAAE
Bl PR EEEIN ARE] EEFEEAT - AR
BARSKMBARANRBE _T——F+-A=+—
B FE AT A R B AE R 2 e BEA R
AlzEEARBEARASEMEMEAERZK
Dk EZMER

43



Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & % £ B AR 2 7 | Annual Report 2011 4 3%

Directors’ Report

ETEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its fellow subsidiaries, holding company and ultimate
holding company which constituted connected transactions (the “Connected
Transactions”) under the Listing Rules:

Set out below are the Connected Transactions which occurred during the year
ended 31st December 2011 pursuant to the Supply Agreement entered into
between Teamsun and the Company on 6th October 2010.

REBEE-ZT—F+-_A=+—"BLFER &X&E
EERER RN B AR R A R KRR A#E
TERBEMRABRBERS ([BERH]) 2R
ST

TREJIBBEBRAKERARFR-Z—FF+ AR
HAZ 2 HERERNBE - E——F+ - A=+—
ALFEETZHERS-

Name of company Description of the Connected Transactions Amount
ARER BEXS 2 Hl X
HK$'000
FHET
Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 192
FERERK REERRBEEHOXIN R
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 335
REERREASHWRZ &R
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Referral Service 859
REEFENREWR 2 S5
Hong Kong Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 86
BEBEBRK AEBERRE SO 2 &
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 250
REERRBEEHWRZ 8
Nanjing Teamsun Information Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 2453
Technology Co,, Ltd.
FREBRKIESRMERAA AEBRERAOZNT 2R
AsiaSoft Securities Ltd Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 11
ERKGEHLRRERAF AEBERERA XN 2SR
Beijing TongMap Information Technology Co, Ltd. ~ Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 298
PR EE SR AER AR REERREEHOXINz R
The above Connected Transactions are subject to various annual cap amounts FEERGEETFARNRBRAT —TF A

disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 8th October 2010. Capitalised terms
used in the section headed “Connected Transactions” above shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the above circular unless specified otherwise.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000, “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect

of the Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with
Listing Rule 14A.38.

NAZBHEREZZE2F LR -BESHTAEN
EXTHERS ] — 8RR 2 m R s bt i s P E 5
ERBREE -

RARIZHMOEEZRESSSHAMASHLDN
EBIRAE RS 2RI 30005k [ B R BHELMEE
BHAINORAEARTS | - K2 EHTTIE S| 574058 [1RIK
BHE TR A A BB R 5% BT 1 ) LARE 3R
AEBRIER S - L BEN D ARE LR RIS 14A 3815
HEERBERNE HEHBEHAEECEERN
RABER M IBFAALE
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CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and
confirmed that the above Connected Transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no sufficient
comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2011, so far as is known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, the interests and short positions of every person, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of

Directors’ Report

ETEHE

BEXS @)
ARRZRBYHRTEEEENRER LM
ERHTY

() HEARFAER-REBHBIETET:

(i E—REFETET A BERAZSA L
B AmEAREME TERRERTEIE=
B E = TR IRRUETT R

(i) MRERHZARIGEZIGFETT  ZGHRTY
BRAFEEIMTEARNARR 2 ERBMNE -

FERR
RoE——FT-A=+—B REFRARAE
BIRARMM FIAL (AATEERTEFTH
BRI AR ) 2 5 S ABBRR 9 o i R
$RBE DI ENBERD BANAR T BEZ
M IAA

Percentage of

the Company held issued share capital

RARKEZEERROHE %
Name of shareholder Direct interest Deemed interest HBITREZ
BRREH HiEER WRHER Aotk
Hong Kong Teamsun 208,792,996 - 67.05
N PN
Teamsun - 208,792,996' 67.05
FERERK
Note: M

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 208,792,996 shares in which Hong Kong

Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2011, there was no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2011, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

1. ERBRARNEBEBAKNEHEBITRATHEARE
0 WU AR VB 2 S 22 i K B 7 78 A 4% 2. 208,792,996
RRA&1D P B A ek o

B EXFEN R-E——F+—A=+—R
WAEMRMAT (AATEEREBTHABRS)
RAAT 2 B S AR P AR S RS
IO BXVE RIS B2 X BRAR T REL
EEY TR

BE HERELD LHES
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ETEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st December 2011 with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules except with respect to Code A4.1, all Non-Executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31st December 2011.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st December
2011,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times in the year ended 31st December 2011.
During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management the
connected transactions, accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group including the review of the annual results, interim and quarterly results, and
discussed various auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$12,000.

AUDITOR

In November 2009, the Company's former auditor Messrs. Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Company, and Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as auditor of the Company. Apart from
this, there has been no change of auditor of the Company in any of the three
preceding years. A resolution will be tabled in the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15th March 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report
J& N\ 1% B EM IR

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BBRRKEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 49 to 153, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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MBREERRES CRREDD) 2HBRE RH
FAMBRE USHRAaUBHRREHAEETMAF
MR FEEERSREEAVBHRRMLEN
M EDEES - AR AR & BT IS R D7 A2 i R s
R G B B RR BR A

BB 2 EAE

B2 BEERRBRMNESEZERAPBEHRE
EHER Y ZRAFE (NN —FREDE) F90
GEAZERRBERMNER BRILZIAREBES
AEEA B O - HMA TSR ARE 2 AR A EME
it AT 8 EsiAEE MR-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BYZHERE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2011,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15th March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
FEERE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

statements.

pal g

5

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-_ZT——F BHE—_Z—Z2F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
IEFE IENEA
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5 FHET FHT
Revenue I ON 7 1,537,328 994,509
Cost of goods sold SHE AR (808,780) (510,438)
Cost of services rendered R AR 2 KA (558,098) (354,871)
Other income N 8 3,594 4,534
Other loss HiEia 9 (1,226) -
Fair value gain on revaluation of ERREYMEZAAEBEEM
investment properties 20 4,000 5,800
Selling expenses HEEH (69,599) (52,601)
Administrative expenses THER (64,291) (43,657)
Finance income BRI 10 1,269 681
Share of results of associates FE(RE & QR EE 23 913 224
Profit before income tax Rk B 18 84 A % A 45,110 44,181
Income tax expense i8R 15 (294) (9,648)
Profit for the year/period attributable to Zx 2 B IR 585 A B4
equity holders of the Company £ HR T 44,816 34,533
Dividends BE 16
Interim dividend R HEIRR B - 12,456
Final dividend REARZ R 12,456 =
HK cents HK cents
A Il
Earnings per share attributable to AATREHEAELESRER
equity holders of the Company
Basis and diluted earnings per share & A% Z 7K % #5821 7| 18 14.39 11.09
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial HS7EFE 1532 M T IB AR A B RS Rk 2 T Al sk
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FmeErsEkaER

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-_ZT——F% BE-_Z—ZF
+=A=+—8H +=-A=+—8
LFE LEAE A
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 5% FET FHET
Profit for the year/period £ HRER 44,816 34,533
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Hib 2@ UE, ~ (EE) :
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land HE L RIEFEHBHB
and buildings 19 24,143 32,196
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation & £t M iEF E L B %
surplus of leasehold land and buildings ELZELERE 38 (3,984) (5312)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HREBINER ZIEH =R
overseas operations (2,178) 1,645
Total comprehensive income forthe AN A R RAIEH AEL
year/period attributable to equity E/REEREAEE
holders of the Company 62,797 63,062
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial HRS7EE153 2 MK AR A IRz 2 T A sk i

okr

statements. 2B o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EEBRE

At 31st December 2011 R=Z——4+=-A=+—01

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
R-TB——%F RZE—ZF
+=A=+-—8 +-A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FERT FHET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB M RE 19(@a) 176,912 162,907
Investment properties "EYHE 20 28,700 24,700
Intangible assets B EE 21(@a) 10,593 900
Goodwill EES 21(a) 34,213 -
Interests in associates i N 23 1,287 1,865
Finance lease receivables FEWEERERIE 29 16,013 3210
Trade receivables &Y E 5 A 28 1,729 1,869
Long-term bank deposit RAEFRITIER 32 155 =
Restricted bank deposits § PR I #R 1T 75 3K 32 498 =
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTSHEE 38 1,001 =
271,101 195,451
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 27 100,658 76,972
Trade receivables JE W B 5 ;R 28 206,953 163,722
Finance lease receivables Fguﬁlmﬁé{fﬂ% KIE 29 6,724 1914
Other receivables, deposits and HAub U FRIE - iee RFERT A
prepayments 30 23,645 23,605
Amounts due from customers EHITRREREPRIE
for contract work 31 190,615 161,659
Tax recoverable Al Uk E IR 785 =
Restricted bank deposits SRHIRITER 32 362 1,924
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEEY 32 108,404 195,552
638,146 625,348
Total assets BEE 909,247 820,799
Equity attributable to equity holders of ZN 2 B R AN 3EH A (L RER
the Company
Share capital f& 7 33 31,140 31,140
Share premium IR 17 % B AR 104,947 104,947
Reserves (k] 34(a) 371,540 321,154
Total equity R 507,627 457,241
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial o 81532 X R AR & BT S 3R 3R 2 1 A 3k

statements.

okk
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mEBEESR’R

At 31st December 2011 R=F——&F+ =B =+—H

As at

31st December

As at

31st December

2011 2010
R-TB——F RZZE—ZF
+=B=+—8H +-A=+—8
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
B 5 FHExT FHT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARIE 22 9,211 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSH B E 38 23,385 17,996
Deferred income EIEUW A - 73
32,596 18,069
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETE 5B 35 200,432 193,000
Other payables and accruals H b FRIB K ERTE A 36 44,212 48,190
Receipts in advance S g 37 114,462 91,979
Current income tax liabilities BIEfFTSfi & & 5,644 12,320
Contingent consideration payable JER S ARIE 22 4,274 =
369,024 345,489
Total liabilities maE 401,620 363,558
Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 909,247 820,799
Net current assets REBEEEE 269,122 279,859
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERABER 540,223 475,310
HUI Wing Choy, Henry LAU Ming Chi, Edward
=K Bt 28575
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EZE
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial BRNS72 F 1532 M s K AR & B 7 3R 2 T AT kiR
statements. B o
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Balance Sheet

At 31st December 2011 R=Z——4+=-A=+—01

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
R-TB——%F R-ZE—ZTF
+=—HA=+-—H +=-A=+—8”
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
{hE=2 THET FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE MRS 19(b) 1,146 1,878
Intangible assets mLEE 21(b) 500 500
Investments in subsidiaries )NH% AlzRE 25 134,623 134,623
Deferred income tax assets BEFMSHEE 38 294 =
136,563 137,001
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and B fh e RIE - e RIBFKIE
prepayments 30 609 360
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EPNEIVSE A 26 111,791 88,228
Tax recoverable A Ug B F I8 640 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeNESEEE 32 1,453 8,240
114,493 96,828
Total assets mEE 251,056 233,829
Equity attributable to equity holders N A AR AIFH AEGR A ERE
of the Company
Share capital &N 33 31,140 31,140
Share premium R 1 = B AR 104,947 104,947
Reserves Gl 34(b) 109,907 85,935
Total equity RS 245,994 222,022
Current liabilities =R
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁ?yxﬁ&ﬁgﬁgﬁﬁ 36 4,845 11,339
Amount due to a subsidiary R — BT B A R IR 26 217 468
5,062 11,807
Total liabilities Bme® 5,062 11,807
Total equity and liabilities HREZRERE 251,056 233,829
Net current assets FEBEEEE 109,431 85,021
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERABER 245,994 222,022

HUI Wing Choy, Henry LAU Ming Chi, Edward

B 28h&
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE 0
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial BAS7EF153 2 M s K AR & WIS 3R 2 T Al sk
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREEHE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

Special Property
reserve  revaluation

Share Share (Note () reserve  Translation Retained
capital premum  HEIfEE  WEER reserve earnings Total
BE  ROBEER GEY e EEREE RERF bl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL FHT THT THT THT THT
At 1st April 2010 R-Z-ZENA—-H 31,140 104,947 34350 36,801 1632 197,195 406,065
Comprehensive income ZEKH
Profit for the period BRI = = - - - 34,533 34,533
Other comprehensive Hib2EKkis/ (EE) :
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplus of leasehold HELHEEFE-RRH
land and buildings - - - 32,19 - - 32,19
Deferred taxation arising from HETHREFE-HRA
revaluation surplus of leasehold EEZBERFIE
land and buildings - - - (5312) - - (5312
Bxchange differences on translationof A E BN EHKEH ZE
overseas operations - - - - 1,645 - 1,645
Total comprehensive income BR2EREEE
for the period - - - 26,884 1,645 34533 63,062
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends R IR B & - - - = = 570 570
Interim dividend for the nine months K% &HZE - T—T4F
ended 31st December 2010 +=-A=+—H
LEAUE A A ERAR B - - - - - (12,456) (12456)
Total transactions with owners ~ BEBEAZR ZHHE = = = = = (11,886) (11,886)
At 31st December 2010 R-E-ZF
+=A=+-H 31,140 104,947 34350 63,685 3277 219,842 457241

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

Special Property
reserve  revaluation
Share Share (Note () reserve  Translation Retained
capital premum  HEIfEE  WEER reserve earnings Total
RA ROREERE  (HE0) ke EBRE REEN k)

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAT TEL TRT TRT TR TAT TAT

At 1st January 2011 W-E--%-HA-H 31,140 104,947 34350 63,685 3277 219,842 457,241
Comprehensive income ZEKE
Profit for the year FREF - - = = S 44816 44816
Other comprehensive Htv2mEbE/ (F8)
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplus of leasehold METHREFEERA
land and buildings - - - 24143 - - 24143
Deferred taxation arising from HETHRETERAR
revaluation surplus of leasehold EEZERFIE
land and buildings - - - (3,984) - - (3,984)
Exchange differences on translation B EBINEHVEH EE
of overseas operations - - - - (2178) - (2,178)
Total comprehensive income FREZEKRAE
for the year - - - 20,159 (2178) 44816 62,797
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends R IR B & = = = = = 45 45
Final dividend for the nine months ~ EBRBE=Z—TF
ended 31st December 2010 +=A=1+-H
IENERZ RERR S = = = = - (12456) (12456)
Total transactions withowners ~ BEEFAZR 5 AE = = = = = (12411) (12411)
At 315t December 2011 RZB-——F
+=A=+-H 31,140 104,947 34350 83,844 1,099 252247 507,627
Note (i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value BEEG) ANEEZFRIREERER - NANEFEARARERG LW
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company's AT R EEAR BB 2 B AR B BITRG
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the ZHEE AR EmBEITHARARRG ZEE
listing of the Company's shares in 1997. MEZEZZERE-

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial BRs72E153 2 M B AR & M SRR 2 T 0] ik
statements. o -
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

statements.

oo
D %

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——F HE_ZT-ZF
+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
LEFE IEAEA
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FHExT FHT
Operating activities REZER
Cash used in operations WEEK 7RSI 41 (29,131) (64,160)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBFEH (8,918) =
Overseas taxation paid B8 INRIE (529) (420)
Tax refund REIIE 302 -
Net cash used in operating activities K& ¥K RS HFHE (38,276) (64,580)
Investing activities REEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, 1 B P /B8 1 )
net of cash acquired (INBRFETUEEIR &) 22 (24,271) -
Transaction cost paid for acquisition B RRZ
of subsidiaries BRI RS (3,464) =
Purchases of property, BEME BE K&
plant and equipment 19 (8,187) (11,040)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & ¥ % « BB & & EFT 15 58
and equipment 41(@a) 437 308
Interest received 2 WFLE 8 265 333
Dividends received from interests BEtE A AR ZRE
in associates 23 1,457 1,454
Other investing outflow E iR E m (1,998) =
Net cash used in investing activities REFE 2R X HFHE (35,761) (8,945)
Financing activities AESEE
Dividends paid ERRE (12,459) (12,456)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFH RS HFHE (12,459) (12,456)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 38 & R IR & EE Y 2@ D F5E (86,496) (85,981)
Cash and cash equivalents at the F/HOZBRERESEED
beginning of the year/period 195,552 279,988
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9N B & & &) (652) 1,545
Cash and cash equivalents at theend of  #F /iR 2 IR & RIREHEY
the year/period 108,404 195,552
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ZE153 2 MR AR & B IS 2k 2 Al it
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company

with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2011, its
immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (‘Hong
Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate holding
company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co,, Limited (“Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and listed on The
Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum

Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is principally an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of

its subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 48 and 23, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, which is also the
functional currency of the Company. These consolidated financial statements

have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15th March 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, leasehold land and buildings, investment properties

and contingent consideration payables.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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RIEER AR BN FEARKEME RN EEF
HER G E 2L REBREBERMDER R
Al ([FEBREL) - ARRZEAMPEEREE
& 330 B 2 #4555l & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda 2 & 7 3 527> A
2 AT 5R ZE NI 451 548 o
RAREEREREERAFAREHRARERE
R THMBRR AMERMNBARIZEE
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

2.

BAS'S OF PREPARAT'ON (Continued)

Pursuant to a board resolution passed on 15th July 2010, the Company
changed its financial year end date from 31st March to 31st December to

align with that of Teamsun, the ultimate holding company of the Company.

As a result of the change, the comparative amounts for the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flow statement and related notes, which covered a nine-
month-period from 1st April 2010 to 31st December 2010, are not directly

comparable to the financial statements of the current year.

New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011 but not

currently relevant to the Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party Disclosures” is effective for
annual period beginning on or after January 2011. It introduces
an exemption from all of the disclosure requirements of HKAS

24 for transactions among government related entities and the
government. Those disclosures are replaced with a requirement

to disclose:

The name of the government and the nature of their

relationship;

The nature and amount of any individually significant

transactions; and

The extent of any collectively-significant transactions

qualitatively or quantitatively.

It also clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

F——#+-A=t+-ALEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 # %= —

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. MEEE ()
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued (b) #FTEB BT RRER -_T—F—A

— B2 M HRFEEERAENRER
BiIARBIRFRA

but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011

and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
October 2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to

the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing its financial instruments and

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair
value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon
its effective date, which is for the accounting period beginning

on or after 1st January 2013.

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on

existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 10's full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the accounting period beginning

on or after Tst January 2013.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. WBEXE (&)

(b) #aT£8|- I k22BN _ZT—F—H#
— BB ZMREEEBMEDARES
BIAREIRERA: (8)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011

and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

BEVBREENENR [ HER
Bl BEMBREENENREE
NPz BN REE (MEELEE

ventures. Joint operations arise where a joint operator has rights FR) - HRAZHD WA : A& EK

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements’, focuses on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than its legal form. There

are two types of joint arrangement: joint operations and joint

to the assets and obligations relating to the arrangement and
hence accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Joint ventures arise where the joint operator has

rights to the net assets of the arrangement and hence equity
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accounts for its interest. Proportional consolidation of joint
ventures is no longer allowed. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
11's full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 no later than the

accounting period beginning on or after 1st January 2013.

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes the . BB HREERE 2R R EA
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, ERER RE] BREARRNEM
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose BERAABFNARG2EERTE &
vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group is yet EHRAZHE BEAR FRlART

to assess HKFRS 12's full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 12 FEMEEABRINTAELE

\
/

no later than the accounting period beginning on or after 1st Bo AN E MR EEBM B RS
January 2013. EHE 2R EEATERBNR-Z

—=F A HAoZRFARZER
HRARABT BB REERIE12

5% o
HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ aims to improve consistency . ERVBREENFE R IAAE

BEEIEEEBREAAEEZ
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EAZARBEAEIEEREZ
B — R M SR — B SR A e
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required or permitted by other standards within HKFRSs. The 2GR BREBEGCAERE
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 13's full impact and intends to B RS RS AR 2 E A EBISR
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and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of

fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide

guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already

adopt HKFRS 13 no later than the accounting period beginning

on or after 1st January 2013.
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2. BAS'S OF PREPARAT'ON (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued

but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011

and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKAS 19 (Amendment), “Employee benefits’, improves the

accounting for defined benefit plans. Under the revised

standard, all changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets will be recognised in
the financial statements immediately in the period they occur.

In addition, the revised Standard requires the changes in the net

defined benefit liability (assets) to be split and presented in the

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

- service cost (including past service cost and settlements)

in profits or loss;

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in

profit or loss; and

- re-measurement of the defined benefit liability (assets) in

other comprehensive income.

The revised standard also includes more minor changes to

definition of short-term employee benefits (in respect of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. WBEEE )
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distinction between short-term and long-term), the definition of
return on plan assets, the timing of recognition of termination
benefits and various disclosure requirements. The Group is yet to
assess HKAS 19 (Amendment)’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKAS 19 (Amendment) no later than the accounting period

beginning on or after 1st January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the

Group.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the year/period presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The Group also
assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms

between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of

a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially

at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises

any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s

identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to

be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,

and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If

this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

RE VIR MEE

—E——Ft+-AST-BLEE

3. TESHEE®

(a)

REEE W@
AEBRBBEEREBAMF AR B
BHELRMERELRBERERANEE
SAEZMEEcEE HREBHIRESR
AEEZABERANEEET 2 - P8
EIREEERAABEAEZEER
HAAREBLHMEEZ BB -MELZ
U EEHRRAR A ABR DI R B ST - RIS A OTAT
Wz EERMAEZBERSK
RABTRKBRZ AAEBEFE U
BRWIB (R AEBIRAAEELI
ERERRLOIRERKET 2 EEF
B HRRRIETT 2 FF A -

PEE & 2 W IB A RARR A A BRI BB X2

RNEBAEEZ EASAREEERE
ERBRANBERR - WIEA—HEENR
BEZIARBERAAEBEZHEZS 1§
RBRESSHERFEINR 2T N8ss
HHERRERAEMEEREZS - 9
R IANEBEIGENTE MHE
HEENER AR

BEONSEMEEREEFERERR

ABEZ LML PTUREET B R 8 EF
BERPTAEREZ R E - M EE
WA ENBRAREEFECRAAEER"
AIZBN B P HER -

63



64 Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & % £ B A 2 7 | Annual Report 2011 4 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Interests in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on

acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of results

of an associate’ in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic

decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HKS), which is the Company's

functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are

presented in the consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none

of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant

and equipment, other than leasehold land and buildings, are stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at

the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset

is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that

asset.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued) 3. FEEHERw)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) () M¥ BMERRKE®)

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued

amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

W BE MREZITE REERAAT
EFAERFRSKAREGSEIZE
BEDBENHEEFE:

follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of the HETH R BENSRTFHIA+F
lease or 50 years, whichever g3 (AREEB%E)
is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'5% EMREE 10% - 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 20% a8 20%
Computer and office equipment 16%:% — 50% BRSEMAE  16Y:%-50%
B

EEZRSREERAEAFHESRS
HEETR RS R EITHE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained

earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property

is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair

values are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Intangible assets

()

(ii)

Gooadwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group's interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair

value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired

in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units ("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwiill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.

Customer relationships, software technology and customer
contracts

The acquired customer relationships, software technology and
customer contracts in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected

life of the assets, as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
Software technology 5 years
Customer contracts 3 months
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at

cost less any identified impairment loss and are tested for

impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with

their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any

indication that they may be impaired.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation

and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets and liability

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at their value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired.

The Group's financial liability is classified as “financial liability at
fair value through profit and loss”. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets and financial liability at initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Financial assets and liability (Continued)
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12

months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that have maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables’, “other receivables and deposits”’, “amounts due
from customers for contract work”, “finance lease receivables’,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

(iii)  Financial liability at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit and loss is initially
measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liability at fair value through profit
and loss is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement in the

period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liability (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value

plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other income’ or ‘other loss’ in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group's right to

receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair

value.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The asset's carrying amount is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks with original

maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business

if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in consolidated other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

() Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each

arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers (generally
on delivery, satisfactory installation and customer acceptance) and the
amount of revenue and the costs incurred for the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation services
and maintenance services, is recognised as revenue by reference to
the stage of completion, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred
and the estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably. Stage
of completion is established by reference to the costs incurred to date
as compared to the total costs to be incurred under the transaction.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated

by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a liability, as receipt

in advance. The balances will be recognised as revenue when earned.

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the sale
of a product, in which case they are recognised upon satisfactory

installation and customer acceptance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

Revenue recognition (Continued) (r)
Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line basis over

the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income, including office rentals and rentals invoiced in advance
from computer equipment under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the relevant leases.

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest
income over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in

the leases for each accounting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using

the original effective interest rate.

Retirement benefit costs (s)
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF

Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans

are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits

is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses which exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the present value
of the Group's retirement benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working

lives of the participating employees.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

()

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the

plan.

Share-based payment

Share options granted to directors of the Company and
employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At the end of each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount previously recognised in

share options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of

ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received

from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

()

(ii)

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased

property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over

the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

The Group as lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is

included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

When assets are leased out under finance lease, the risk and
rewards of ownership are transferred to customers. When assets
are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the

lease payments is recognised as a receivable.

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company's financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders

or directors, where appropriate.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Revenue recognition
According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(r), the Group
uses the percentage of completion (the “POC") method to determine
the appropriate revenues to be recognised from rendering of services
(other than maintenance services). The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs of completion.
When the outcome of a POC contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recongised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that

it will be probably recoverable.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Provision for impairment of trade and other

(c)

receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of the collectability of those receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern
promised. If the financial conditions of these customers were to

deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

Valuation of investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties, leasehold
land and buildings performed by external professional valuers by
using the open market value approach. Had the Group used different
valuation techniques, the fair value of the investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings would be different and thus may have an

impact to the consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant judgement is required in determining

the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year/period in which such determination

is made.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets

In accordance with HKFRS, an impairment charge is required for both
goodwill and other intangible assets when the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount, defined as the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Our approach in determining the
recoverable amount utilises a discounted cash flow methodology,
which necessarily involves making numerous estimates and
assumptions regarding revenue growth, operating margins, tax rates,

appropriate discount rates and working capital requirements.

Valuation of contingent consideration payable

For acquisitions accounted for under HKFRS 3, future anticipated
payments to vendors in respect of earnouts are based on the
management’s best estimates of future obligations, which are
dependent on future performance of the interests acquired and
assume the operating companies improve profits in line with
management’s estimates and are included in liabilities greater or less
than one year as appropriate. These estimates will likely differ from
future actual results of operations and cash flows, and it is possible that
these differences could be material. Changes to earnouts are recorded

in the consolidated income statement.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained

earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget
taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed
annual budget, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations

of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if

necessary.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group did not have any borrowings (2010:

same).

There are no changes on the Group's approach to capital risk management

during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity

risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
(USD) and Hong Kong dollars (HKS). Foreign exchange exposure
of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to peg the HKS to the USD remains in effect. There was
no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and
therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied
during the year ended 31st December 2011 (nine months

ended 31st December 2010: same).

After the acquisition of i-Sprint during the period (Note 22),

the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
Singapore dollar (“SGD"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities. As at 31st December 2011, if
SGD had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for the period would
have been approximately HK$674,000 higher/lower, mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on translation of SGD

denominated liabilities.

To manage the foreign currency risk arising from SGD, the
Group had entered into forward exchange contracts. A gain of
HK$21,000 (nine months ended 31st December 2010: nil) was

recognised in the Group's consolidated income statement.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to variable interest rate risk in respect

of the bank balances and deposits of the Group. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollars variable interest rate on bank

deposits and balances.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances, at the balance sheet date and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year/period and held constant throughout the reporting period
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31st December 2011 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$321,000 (Nine months ended 31st December
2010: increase/decrease by approximately HK$820,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on

its variable-rate bank deposits and balances.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Creditrisk

(c)

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from

cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The Group only places deposits in reputable
banks and financial institutions and manages its credit risk associated
with trade receivable through the application of credit approvals,

credit rating and monitoring procedures.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue trade receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of each reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to
trade receivables, bank balances and deposits, with exposure spread

over a number of counterparties and customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (Note 24) in the consolidated balance

sheet after deducting any impairment provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board of Directors, which has built a liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on operating cash flow as a

significant source of liquidity.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Contingent consideration payable ERSARE 4,274 393 4,667
214,383 393 214,776

On demand or
within 1 year Over 1 year Total

AR E SRk,
R—%FRA HiE—F #Et
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT Fi#7 FHT

31st December 2010 - Group e
=+—H-%X4%&E

Trade payables ERNESHHIA 193,000 = 193,000
Other payables H b fE S BRIE 7,800 = 7,800
200,800 - 200,800
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RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group relies on its surplus cash as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31st December 2011, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$108,404,000 (2010: HK$195,552,000).

6. Bt
(c)

KERER @
B R (#)
AEBERBERCRHBBRDESZEE
KE-R—ZE——F+-_A=+—H0 &
B2 e RIREFE WAL A108,404,000
BT (ZF—Z4F 1 195552,000/7C) ©

On demand or

within 1 year Over 1 year Total
BARERDY
R—FR HBB—F #BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THERT THERT
31st December 2011 - Company —E2——%+ZH
=t-B-%27
Other payables HA T ARIE 179 - 179
Amount due to a subsidiary R B A RIIE 217 - 217
396 - 396
On demand or
within 1 year Over 1 year Total
ARENRDK
R—%ER HiB—F et
HKS'000 HK§/000 HK$'000
THET THT FTHET
31st December 2010 - Company —Z-TF+-A
=t+—HB-&RA7F
Other payables AN 227 = 227
Amount due to a subsidiary R B A RIRIE 468 - 468
Amount due to associates REE A RIHIE 2 - 2
697 - 697
Fair value estimation (d) AREEME

The carrying value less impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due from customers for contract
work, finance lease receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from/(to) group and related companies,
trade payables, other payables, approximate their fair values due

to their short maturities. The fair value of contingent consideration
payable, non current portion of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term bank deposit and restricted bank deposits are
disclosed in Note 22, 28, 29 and 32.

HREREAME  WEKE ZRIE - Hih
ERFBEBREZES AHNIREERESR
BHRMEMERKTE BRHKRTE
TR RBELEEY B ENEE
RBAE AR - B E 5 RIE - H A AR
BrREEEEAAEBERES EHK
ARE - BN E FRIEZ IR EIH B
ERERKTIE  RBFITETARER
HIERTTF R BRI 5222 ~ 28 ~ 29324

o
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) . -
(d) Fair value estimation (Continued) 6. MBRAREE )

(d) DAEEME (®
T &R B AEE S Y AR R BEFIEE
ZEBMIAZAI -FRABRETHT

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

HEEERE ERERTIST IR
B CRERE) () -

or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

BRE-—GAERZREN ZE
EBEzEEZ (BIER)XMEE
(REER) IBRZ2H8(F=
&) o

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable ) N . \
WHERABEMSEIENEER
BEZ2H (TABRE2%) (=
&) e

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's financial liabilities that are \
TRE#INR=_ZT——F+_A=+—H
REBRAABEAEZHBEE

measured at fair value at 31st December 2011.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE-R BE-R E=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT THET
Liabilities gfE
Contingent consideration payable FEf sk A (E - = 13,485 13,485
Total liabilities maf - = 13,485 13485

There were no such assets nor liabilities as at 31st December 2010.
RZZ—ZFF+_A=+—H #BEZE
BESBE-
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
RERMSEANEBEZeMIANKREE
HemiaREAELAANEE - BEASNKR
EENRRZFPT R 50 K48 1TEER
EERBAEEHBIGRE mMAEE
BRREBERERBEE ZRATRAE
T2m%BR 5 Rlzm5al R ERmS -
REBERB LU BEEMB TS RE
REFZENB ZETEHAE -

based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active

WHRERMSNEE 2 &/ TA (1055
IMTETR) ARERNEE A AEE-
ZEHBERMEAEERAIBRREMSEH
B URERSEKBERZSEMT &
TAZRAREBEMEZMEEREEE R
BRI AR TRAGIAE =4

market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation technigues maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in

level 2.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is

determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet

date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the

year ended 31st December 2011.

EERER s

(d AREBEEMEE (&)
E-ENSEEARBELIEUATERY
TISEEARE A TABHAE=S
e

BA R T AGMEZFEGERTE
I

EHSMNER K 2 AR BETIEARN
EEHZERHINEREREE AT
SEEDUEREME-

MBI S AT 5 KA 5% T3
RETHTERIAZAREME:
TREFBE-F——F+-A=+-

ALFEZE=RIAZEH-

Contingent

consideration

payables

EBARARE

HKS$'000

FHT

Opening balance FEEER =

Additions of contingent payments for acquisition of gEUC B BB A T hn S R Ek (MEEE22)

subsidiaries (Note 22) 13,838

Settlements e (1,579)
Fair value losses recognised in the consolidated REEEBEEERZ A EEEE (Ki9)

income statement (Note 9) 1,226

Closing balance FRER

13,485
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold
by the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances, and revenue

from service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

—E——Ft+-AS+-BLEE

7. WARZHER

WA EREBRINAZTFFHEE R (I
RERFH) RREREEHBRAZE R RE
Y2 S8 B\t

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010

BE-Z——f BE_ZT—TF

+=—HA=+-—H +=ZA=+—8

ILFE LENEA

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FHET

Sales of goods HEEM 899,490 573910
Revenue from service contracts RARBE LD ZHA 637,838 420,599
1,537,328 994,509

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of
Directors (the “Board”). The Board reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The Board has

determined the operating segments based on the Group's internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (nine months ended 31st
December 2010: two) operating divisions — Information Technology Products
(“IT Products”) and Information Technology Services (‘IT Services"). These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information to the chief operating decision maker. The business nature of

each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of information

technology and associated products.

IT Services
Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for

products and solutions and managed services.

EXRCHBERRTIBELERRE -EFEE
BIAREENABERNEFEEERDEE
R-EBZERBAEE AN ERETLED

B

AEEHME(RE—_Z—TF+_A=+—
B EALfE A fﬁml)i‘“%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁz BARHRE
m ([BRBRER]) RERRZRSE ([ER
BRI ]) - B HFIRAREZ2RMETED
MERTEEZEAREZEE - ZENEZ
EBMEERENT

EARKER
BN GLAE B AR G RARMIE R 2 BB
7 o

B R B IR 3%
BB RGES B RBARMREY AR RAR
ARz TEIERERRG 2 ANPHRER -
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2011

7. WARDHER =

FEEB O HEMZINMT :

BE-_Z——H+=-A=+—HLEFE

IT Products IT Services Total Group

ERRBER EARNBRS HEtAREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FTExT THET

Revenue from external customers REMBER ZWA 899,490 637,838 1,537,328

Intersegment revenue DEBFEUA 23,655 39,782 63,437

Segment revenue 7 EBIA 923,145 677,620 1,600,765

Reportable segment profit AJIRE D EEF 47,884 54,236 102,120

Reportable segment assets AWREDHEE 287,972 306,393 594,365

Reportable segment liabilities ARESEERE 182,163 144,721 326,884

Segment depreciation DEIME 2,627 8,819 11,446

Segment amortisation k=i 3! - 2,071 2,071

Additions to property, plant and equipment NEWE BERZE 957 5,272 6,229

Additions to intangible assets RBEEWEE = 12,035 12,035

Additions to goodwill REWE - 35,274 35,274
Nine months ended 31st December 2010 HE-ZT-ZTF+-_A=+—HIEN@EA

IT Products IT Services Total Group

BARER AR RS BHAKE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TAT FTHET

Revenue from external customers REIBEE ZWA 573,910 420,599 994,509

Intersegment revenue D ERREUA 87883 11,892 20,680

Segment revenue D EA 582,698 432,491 1,015,189

Reportable segment profit ARE S AT 37,683 41,156 78,839

Reportable segment assets AREDHDEE 271328 172,807 444,135

Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 192,663 96,312 289,475

Segment depreciation DEIE 1,099 4871 5970

Additions to property, plant and equipment RNEWE BEKREE 882 5434 6316
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as

the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Performance is
measured based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to

reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are

allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income tax, excluding
unallocated other income/loss, share of results of associates, gain

or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, unallocated
depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used for all
segments, fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties and
other corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and other general

administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred
income tax assets, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, long-term bank deposit and unallocated corporate
assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and part of intangible assets that are used by all segments,

prepayments and deposits).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities,
deferred income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities

(mainly include accrued charges of the head office).

Addition to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill include additions resulting from acquisition through business

combinations.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

RE VIR MEE

—E——Ft+-AS+-BLEE

7. WARZHER =

(a)

AR E D AR R A e & AT R Y BRI 3
Fﬁ%&&"‘i@ﬂ’\]ﬁ§+ﬁ%$ﬁ@°i‘%fﬁﬂﬁﬁ
ERERKERNDRER L ED
*BEEIEE‘J’“* BAFTE - BRSNS
DEEFIHRED A -

AREBEMUA M SRR -
Ty ) BRH) T B A D BT

BEERARE

A RS D B ENE N SRR FS B ADER - A
BERDEEMBA BB BEEEA
FIRE HEWE BERRBZWE
B -RE S BERZNE  BE KR

BLADERNE EHREVEZARE
ERMFARERZEMRRAMY (2
BIEE TRAREAM —RITHAA) -

AREDMNEET RIS A FER
BEMBREE XRHRTER B
FEeEEY RPRTEIARKRSE
REBE(XEREMBEABERZY
X BEMERE REMEARID BT
BE BNRBEREZES) -

AHREDHNAETE ?ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ BiA
B BEMBHRABRRDECRARE
(?EE@%%@##%;&ZWEJr%FH) ©

0

%% WEREE EREERBEZR
BREAEBEBAFETIREMES
Zﬁﬁao
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE =T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

7. WARDHER =

(b) AHE 27 EBWA - &
B -BEEREBENYHIR
RS2 SEIRA CEFSER BER
BERAKE XERREERBAE

follows: HERWAT :
Revenue 'ON For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——F BE-ZT—ZF
+=BA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
IHEE LIENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Reportable segment revenue A ¥R & 7 ZBUR A 1,600,765 1,015,189
Elimination of intersegment revenue i ﬁ 2 B0 RE U A (63,437) (20,680)
Revenue per consolidated income RERE Bz IR YR &I WA
statement 1,537,328 994,509
Inter-segment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit 73 B FE WA F2 B 2N 0 A 1R URER
mark-up.
Profit or loss AR R For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——F HE-_ZT—ZF
+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEAEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Reportable segment profit Efﬁ%ﬁj\*ﬁxﬁn all 102,120 78,839
Unallocated amounts: R BLRIE
Unallocated other income b E,H\WELBUK 3,594 2,906
Unallocated other loss ROBLEMEIE (1,226) =
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHEEMEZ
investment properties NAEEE I 4,000 5,800
Unallocated (loss)/gain on disposal of RAOBEEWE BE &
property, plant and equipment Bz (EB8) e (263) 68
Unallocated depreciation AOEITE (5,638) (5,232)
Share of results of associates FEREEE A RS 913 224
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEARAXZ (58,390) (38/424)
Profit before income tax per RERE B BRI R A
consolidated income statement BT 1S % A 4 K 45,110 44,181
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RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDIBEE )

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

(b) FIERE 22BN 8

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) B EENEENYER (&)
Assets BE 31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZF
+=ZA=t+—H +=-—A=+—8”
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 594,365 444,135
Unallocated assets: ROBEEE:
Interests in associates Bt N RIRE TS 1,287 1,865
Deferred income tax assets REFREHA E 1,001 =
Unallocated restricted bank deposits RO FZ R FIRITIEK 860 1,924
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents APREBEENESEEDY 108,404 195,552
Unallocated long-term bank deposit KRHBRAIRITFER 155 =
Unallocated corporate assets APEARIEE 203,175 177,323
Total assets per consolidated RirEe EEBEBERIEN
balance sheet BERR 909,247 820,799
Liabilities = 31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—2——F —E-FF
+=ZA=t+—H +=-A=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Reportable segment liabilities AIREDEEE 326,884 289,475
Unallocated liabilities: RKOEBE
Current income tax liabilities BIEIFA S A & 5,644 12,320
Deferred income tax liabilities REEREHEE 23,385 17,996
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARIBEE 45,707 43,767
Total liabilities per consolidated RirG EEBEBERIIHRD
balance sheet BERRE 401,620 363,558
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDHER &)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) TIRE 2D EBUA - 75 T = 65
B - EEREBENHEER @)
AEMEBRHBEED B AEH

The Group's businesses and segment assets are all located in the

respective place of domicile of the relevant Group entities which SEERSAZMTEH  ERREEE-
include Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Macau, Singapore, Taiwan and BEM ~BRPT - EANE - B8 R ZRE
Thailand.
Place of domicile Frie st Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENMBEFE ZBWA ERBEE
For the
For the nine months
year ended ended
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
BE-Z2——-% HZE_T-TF
+t=HA=t-H +ZA=+-H —B——-F —ZT-%F
LEE EhEA +=RA=+-H +=ZRA=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTET TERT FERT
Hong Kong i 1,355,671 892,766 207,230 185,255
Guangzhou = 17,914 20,788 229 2,208
Macau Pl 54,299 40,846 3,646 5831
Singapore EApIIEd 17,685 - 44,311 -
Taiwan = | 4,711 20285 579 1062
Thailand el 48,543 19,824 15,052 1,095
Others Hits 1,505 - 54 =
1,537,328 994,509 271,101 195451
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8. OTHERINCOME

10

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #(Z =&

8.

HAb WA

For the
year ended
31st December

RE VI ERRMEE

——%+=A=+-BILEE

For the
nine months ended
31st December

2011 2010
BE-Z——F E-T—TF
+=A=+-—8 +=—A=+—8H
LFE LEAE A
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTERT FAT
Interest on bank deposits HITIF R 265 333
Equipment rental income REHSWA - 1,439
Rental income from investment properties REJREWHE ZHESKA
(note 20) (B 3E20) 1,496 1,122
Exchange gain HE 5, 5 - 670
Referral income received from REEBDBNNBERA
group companies 859 -
Fair value gain on foreign RAIINE S K 2 DA EEE N
forward contract 21 =
Others Hth 953 970
3,594 4,534
OTHER LOSS 9. HitE#HE
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z2——F HE-Z-ZTF
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—8H
LFE LENEA
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Contingent consideration payable FEfS S ARAE
Fair value loss NARBEEE 1,226 -
FINANCE INCOME 10. BA WL A
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial WA RERAABEERE R R ER
recognition of loans and receivables to their fair values. IR FER BV AL IR IE hn o

oL
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11. EXPENSES BY NATURE

N BZMEIBE2HEX

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-_Z——F% HE—_ZT—ZTF
+=A=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
I“HEE 1ENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERIAZ (TREEZME)
directors’ remuneration) (note 12) (BtsE12) 440,044 277,738
Depreciation and amortisation e R s
Property, plant and equipment Y WERFE 17,084 11,202
Intangible assets (included in costs of mEEE (BREMRE 2
services rendered) ) 2,071 -
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) BEE (FFFE13) 8,457 7914
Auditor's remuneration: ZERM S
Current year/period NEE,HME 2,847 1,736
Underprovision in respect of prior year/ BAFE HRBETR
period 30 32
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and EEME BE REEZ
equipment (note 41(a)) BE (k) (KiE41e) 1,060 (227)
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KEHERS:
Office premises MAEYE 8,099 5,863
Computer equipment B EE - 1,281
Reversal of impairment of club memberships & FT& £ 2 B B & # [
(note 21) (BtEE21) - (200)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE 5B R ERE
(note 28) (P 5E28) 758 863
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade FE W B 5 RRIE 2 R (B B E O]
receivables (note 28) (Bt E28) (554) (1,597)
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

For the
year ended

31st December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R EHRERMEE

—E-—FtZASt—ALEE

2. BERARAX (FTERESH

For the
nine months ended

31st December

2011 2010

BE-Z——F BE_Z—TF

+=A=+-—H +—-A=+—H

IEFE 1ENEA

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

Salaries and other benefits He REMEF 418,426 258,015

Performance related incentive bonus RIREE 2 BENEA 12,619 13,542

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFHEI 3R 8,999 6,181

Total employee benefit expenses REBAMFAZ B 440,044 277,738
13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEM &

For the For the

year ended nine months ended

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

BE-_Z——F HE-_Z—TF

+=—HA=+-—H +-—A=+—8H

LEFE IENEA

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHExT FAET

Fees e 530 401

Other emoluments: HiM e :

Salaries and other benefits Fe MEMEF 6,527 4626
Performance related incentive bonus RIREM 2 EENEA 1,336 2,925
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFET B3 64 (38)
8,457 7914
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (nine months ended 31st

December 2010: nine) directors were as follows:

13.BEEM2

ARABENHEN T (BE-T—2F+=
A=+—BILAEAR : WD ESEZHemT :

For the year ended 31st December 2011
BE-Z——5+-A=+t-BLEE

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefit

and other incentive scheme
Name of director Espg Fees benefits payments  contributions Total

5eR REEEZ RIER
e Hip3E R RBEAL HE 8 s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER TiERx THET TiExn

(Note a)
(Ksta)

Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEE - 2,387 298 (287) 2,398
Hui Wing Choy, Henry (Note b) B GAEDY) - 303 800 25 1,128
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon REK - 2,280 126 186 2,592
Lau Ming Chi, Edward BlgaE - 1,557 112 140 1,809
Hu Liankui i E 70 - - - 70
Wang Weihang F#m 50 - - - 50
Chen Zhaohui BRERmE 50 - - - 50
Young Meng Ying 5t B 134 - - - 134
Lu Jiagi xR 116 S = = 116
Xu Peng {3 110 - - S 110
530 6,527 1,336 64 8,457
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

13.BEEM 2 »

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010

HE-T-TF+=A=+-BILAEA

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefit

and other incentive scheme
Name of director BENA Fees benefits payments contributions Total

ek - KEAEZ RIRAER
ik HitAaH B ATEIHE o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TERL THET TEL

(Note a)
(FizEa)

Lai Yam Ting, Readly BEE = 1890 1,360 (270) 2980
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon REK - 1602 1070 130 2802
Lau Ming Chi, Edward BsaE - 1134 495 102 1731
Hu Liankui = 53 - - - 53
Wang Weihang F#m 38 - - - 38
Chen Zhaohui e 38 - - - 38
Young Meng Ying Hag 108 - - - 108
Lu Jiagi EEE 85 - = = 85
Xu Peng hiE 79 - - = 79
401 4626 2025 (39) 7914
@  The performance related incentive payments are determined as a percentage of @) KRIBABZEBIEATIEANEEFE HiME

profit for the year/period of the Group.

(b) Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer in
replacement of Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready. Mr. Hui was appointed as an Executive
Director on 1st December 2011.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, no remuneration has been paid
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group and no directors have waived any remuneration (nine months ended

31st December 2010: same).

MzBDLERE -

() FIKMELERZTERBRSIEREEETHRE
H-R_E——F+-_A—BAFEERZER
WiTE=E-

REBE-_T——F+_A=+—ALFE &
SEVESGEEMAAEEmM N zMe
WREEEHEEMAHS (BE-FT—FF
TZA=+—HIEAEAR :ER) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year/period included

four (nine months ended 31st December 2010: three) directors as at 31st

December 2011, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 13 above.

The remuneration of the remaining one (nine months ended 31st December

2010: two) highest paid individuals for the year and the remuneration of Mr.

Hui Wing Choy, Henry prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive Officer

of the Company are as follows:

14. EEBESH2Z2EER
&/ NEERSH 2 EERENS (BB
E—FEF+-_A=+—HILAAR:=R)&E
BRI HERR R RE - ER
Hip— % (BE-F T4 +-A=+—AI
NEA : %) > BB HES RIS
AXARFRBHN 2 e ENT -

For the
year ended For the

31st December nine months ended

2011 31st December
(Note a) 2010
BE-Z——F
+=A=+—8 HE-_T—TF
LFEE +=—A=+—8~
(Ff&Ea) 1ENEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Salaries and other benefits He REMET 3,036 3273
Performance related incentive bonus RIRBE 2 BENEA 2,852 3,860
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKRE T BN 3R 247 111
6,135 7,244

Their remunerations were within the following bands:

mEZBENFTHEER:

Number of individuals

RAE
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——F HE-ZT—ZF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
IEFE LIEN1E A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/% 7T 24,500,000 7T 1 -

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

5,000,00178 7T 25,500,000 7T

(@) Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as an Executive Director on 1st

December 2011. His remuneration as an employee for the period from
1st January 2011 to 30th November 2011 has been included in the above

remuneration.

@ RZE——F+ZA—B kM ELEREE
RATESZ - BR_T——F—A—HE=-Z
——H+-A=+tRPREEAEEZHEES
REX-
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

15. FiEBiR <

—E-—FtZASt—ALEE

For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-_Z——%F HE-_ZT—ZF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—~H
IHEE 1ENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current taxation: BVERAFRIA
Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH 8,788 7,600
Overseas taxation B HNEETE 680 191
(Over)/underprovision in prior years/period: BEEE UM (BEEE),/
BHEIR:
Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH (7,630) (276)
Overseas taxation BHNEETE 52 (87)
1,890 7428
Deferred taxation (note 38): IRIERTE (MI3E38) -
Current year/period REE,/HAM (1,596) 2220
Income tax expense i8R x 294 0,648

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (nine months
ended 31st December 2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year/period. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on

the estimated assessable profit for the year/period at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

BB B IR IR AR G 2 /HAR (i 51 P RR B i
MiEBiEI65% (BEZT—TF+-A=1+—
BHIEJUE A 165% ) VB - BINR T 2 T
BANR BT / HAR G ET SR B i R AR S
B EBERR 2 RITHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. FRE B X (@)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical REBRAEHANRF 2 HEEZABERNEG
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to HEBEMNZMETEBRGHEIERSREL

profits of the consolidated entities as follows: ZEMT:
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010

BE-¥-—-%  #BZ-T-TF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—H

IHFEE LIENE A
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#Ex FHT
Profit before income tax R P45 750 A e 45,110 44,181
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of REBFEHH E165% B 2 HiIE
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ2—ZF:165%) 7,443 7,290
Tax effects of: g E:
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose FERHAE NI X 1,362 883
Income not taxable for tax purpose EB 7 E T E R 2 WA (1,094) (1,313)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas REBINEEMEH 2
operations TRME 2 & 11 (94)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BEEE 590 102
(Reversal of )/provision for income tax provision FLE N FELEE HE univd
for change of accounting year end date FTie®: (BE) BiE (1,267) 3,550
Over provision in prior years/period BEFEHREBEARE (6,311) (363)
Others HAl (540) (407)
Income tax expense Frisfif X 294 9,648
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 0.7% (nine months ended 31st MEFHEARE R (BHEZT—ZTF
December 2010: 21.8%). TZA=+—HIEAMEA :218%)
Decrease in income tax expense was mainly due to reversal of tax provisions FEEHATRIHEZERASHNBEHMELN

made in prior periods. REERERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. RS
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-_Z——% BE—_Z—Z2F
+=A=+-—8 +=—A=+—8H
LLFE LEAE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution RE/HANERBD RS :
during the year/period:
Interim dividend in respect of the nine —E-THE+-A=+—AH1It
months ended 31st December 2010 of NER 2z P HIRR S
4.0 HK cents per share FHAZ4.081L - 12,456
Final dividend in respect of the nine months T EF+ZA=+—HL
ended 31st December 2010 of FER 2 REARR &
4.0 HK cents per share FRR4071(L 12,456 =
12,456 12,456
Dividends proposed: BORA S
Final dividend in respect of the year ended —T——F+ZA=+—HIt
31st December 2011 of 5.5 HK cents per F 2 2 NERR BB AR5.5 L
share (nine months ended 31st December —E-FTF+-_F=+—H
2010: 4.0 HK cents) LEAE A : B R0 L) 17,127 12,456

17. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$36,383,000
(nine months ended 31st December 2010; HK$12,548,000).

17. X2 A RAFR ARG R

ERARBFBHREREIE 2 ARARIRAES
AFE(EF 536,383,000 T (BE_T—ZTF
+=ZA=+—HIENM@EA 125480008 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HIFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to

equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity

18. EREF|
ADTRARE ARG SRERREERFT
BRI B R

RRRARABEARGESRER

holders of the Company

For the
year ended

31st December

For the
nine months ended

31st December

2011 2010
BE-Z2——F HE_T—FTF
+=HA=+—H +=-A=+—-H
IEFE LIENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted AU EERERREFERT

earnings per share Z&F 44,816 34,533

Number of shares

KRH#E

For the For the
year ended nine months ended

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

BE-ZT——F HE-ZT—%
+=-—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
IHEE 1ENE A
‘000 ‘000
T’ F &

Weighted average number of ordinary AAFEERERR
shares for the purpose of basic and HHRRNEBR

diluted earnings per share IS E 311,403 311,403

There were no dilutive instruments for the year ended 31st December 2011

(nine months ended 31st December 2010: same).

BE-T——F+-A=+-BLFE IE
BETA(BE-_T-—TF+-A=+—HL
NAEA AR °
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

19. Y% - BERRE - AEERE

AND COMPANY N
(@) Group (a) &=&EE
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture Motor and office
buildings and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
HELHR Bl
EF BRREE AE RAERE @it
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET THT FET TET THT
At 1t April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA—H
Cost or valuation RSk {1 99,100 44984 3848 178555 326487
Accumnulated depreciation 2EE - (40,803) (2,989) (151,872) (195,660)
Net book amount REFE 99,100 4181 863 26,683 130827
Nine months ended BE-_F-ZF+_-A
31st December 2010 =t—HIENEA
Opening net book amount B ARS8 99,100 4181 863 26,683 130827
Additions NE = 1274 240 9526 11,040
Disposals e = Q) (10) (70) (81)
Transfer B - 572 - (572) -
Depreciation charge nENK (199) (1321) (293) (7592) (11,202)
Exchange realignment EHEAE - 30 1 9% 127
Revaluation adjustment BERE 32,19 - - - 32,19
Closing net book amount BARRETE 129,300 4,735 801 28071 162,907
At 31st December 2010 R-Z-FF+-A=1+—H
Cost or valuation A Skt 1 129,300 4015 3792 186,869 361976
Accumulated depreciation 2EiE - (37,280) (2.991) (158,798) (199,069)
Net book amount REFE 129300 4735 801 28071 162,907
Comprising: BE:
At cost 3% = 4015 3792 186,869 232676
Atvaluation fhE 129,300 - S - 129300
129,300 £015 3792 186,869 361976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

19. Y%  BERRE -FEBRAE

AND COMPANY (continued) YNCIIC )
(@) Group (Continued) (a) &&EBE#H)
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture Motor and office
buildings and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
HELHR ElK
BF GRR#E AE BARRE @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THx THEx FHET TR T
At Tst January 2011 RZZ——%—A—H
Cost or valuation Ak 129,300 4015 3792 186,869 361976
Accumnulated depreciation 2EE - (37,280) (2991) (158,798) (199,069)
Net book amount REFE 129,300 4735 801 28071 162,907
Year ended 31st December 2011 BE-T——%+=A
=T-RALEE
Opening net book amount BRI FE 129300 4735 801 28071 162,907
Additions RE = 1,046 = 7,141 8,187
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 22) MBI B2 R (M 22) - 28 = 279 307
Disposals HE - (143) = (1354) (1497)
Depreciation charge nENK (3543) (1869) (407) (11,265) (17,084)
Exchange realignment X AHE - © ) (38) (51)
Revaluation adjustment BEfERE 24143 - - = 24143
Closing net book amount BAREFE 149,900 3791 387 2834 176912
At 31st December 2011 R=ZB——F+-A=+—H
Cost or valuation Ak {1 149,900 28923 2434 118,376 299,633
Accumnulated depreciation 2EE - (25,132) (2,047) (95,542) (122,721)
Net book amount REFE 149,900 3,791 387 22834 176912
Comprising: g
At cost A = 28923 2434 118,376 149,733
At valuation hE 149,900 = = = 149,900
149,900 28923 2434 118,376 299,633
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP
AND COMPANY (continued)
(a) Group (Continued)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The leasehold land and buildings were last revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer, at 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, at
market value basis which is determined by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. The
revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net of applicable
deferred income taxes of HK$20,159,000 (nine months ended
31st December 2010: HK$26,884,000) which has been credited

to the property revaluation reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation
and amortisation, of approximately HK$52,497,000 (2010:
HK$54,562,000).

The Group's interest in leasehold land represents finance lease

payments held in Hong Kong between 10 to 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment have

been charged to the consolidated income statement as follows:

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R ERMEE

—E——Ft+-AST-BLEE

19. V1% - BERRZE - EREBER A
YNGINE))
(@) &%EH (@)

() HELHREFEE—AHBILE
EGEMBERTERARN-E
—F+A=FT—HEZZ-F
F+-—A=+—H2EWB LA
BYELAR S 2 ERE RRAE
MERAR G MEEEREITER -
ERENRERRTEMESHEES
B EA201590008 T (BE-F
—ZEF+-A=+—HIENAEA:
26,884,000%70) * WEF ARYESE
i

(i) MMEELIHREFREERG H
SREL KA RETITE R
149524970008 7T (ZF—F4F:
54,562,000 7T ) T A% 4R G B I
& o

iy AEERBETHZERERE
BEANF0R0FE 2 BEREN

B
A °©

vy AEEZYE BERREBINE
EREEERERNRET

For the For the

year ended

31st December

nine months ended

31st December

2011 2010

BE-_Z——F HE-ZT—ZF

+=A=+-—8 +=—A=+—H

IHEE 1ENEA

HK$'000 HKS$'000

F#ExT FHET

Cost of services rendered R ARTS 2 XA 10,049 5,209
Selling expenses HEBR 1,397 761
Administrative expenses THER 5,638 5,232
17,084 11,202

As at 31st December 2011, the Group's leasehold land

and buildings of approximately HK$149,900,000 (2010:
HK$129,300,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities of
the Group as mentioned in Note 46.

v) i E4eRTil R=ZF——F =
A=+—RH AEEHAELHK
EF49149,0000008 L (ZF—F
4 129,300,000/ 7T ) E AEAS%E
RITREE 234 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

19. Y% - BERRE - AERERE

AND COMPANY (continued) YNCIIC )
(b) Company (b) A&7 F]
Computer
and office
Furniture Motor equipment
and fixtures vehicles EiER Total
BRREE RE MAERE “st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET THET
At 1st April 2010 R-Z—-ZF0MA—H
Cost DFN 1460 1,802 8,622 11,884
Accumulated depreciation 2:iE (382) (1,000) (3,699) (5,081)
Net book amount BREFE 1,078 802 4923 6,303
Nine months ended HE-ZT-TH+=A
315t December 2010 =+—HLEAEA
Opening net book amount HYREEE 1078 802 4923 6,803
Additions NE 522 - 19 541
Disposals & = (10) (3,774) (3,784)
Depreciation charge FEMR (264) (267) (1,151) (1,682)
Closing net book amount HIRARE S 1336 525 17 1878
At 31st December 2010 RZZE—FF
+=—A=+—"H
Cost B AR 1,982 1,750 24 3,756
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (646) (1,225) (7) (1,878)
Net book amount BREFE 1336 525 17 1,878
Yearended 31st December 2011 HE-T——F+_A
=+—BHIEFE
Opening net book amount HIf AR E FE 1336 525 17 1878
Additions wE 8 = = 8
Depreciation charge EMR (398) (338) @) (740)
Closing net book amount EREREFE 946 187 13 1,146
At 315t December 2011 WZZE——F+_H
E=F
Cost AR 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation 2:iE (1,044) (1,563) an 2618)
Net book amount REFE 946 187 13 1,146

Depreciation expense of HK$740,000 (nine months ended 31st
December 2010: HK$1,682,000) has been charged to “administrative

expenses”.

FEMT7400008 T (BEZZT—TF
+=—A=+—H1EAMEA :1682000%7T)
ERITIRER | ke
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 20. REWE-—FKE

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

= —E-TF

+=ZA=t+—H +=ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At Tst January/1st April W—A—HB,/mMA—A 24,700 18,900

Fair value gain NAEEE N 4,000 5,800

At 31st December W+=ZA=+—8H 28,700 24,700
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income INTeEERGEIERRER:

statement:
For the For the
year ended nine months ended

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

BE-Z——F HE-T—ZTF

+=A=t+—H +-—A=+—8H

LEFE IENEA

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAET

Rental income (note 8) A UWA (F5E8) 1,496 1,122
Direct operating expense arising from EARSRAZIRENE
investment properties that FTEEZBEREERX

generate rental income 276 207
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RE VIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP (Continued)

(@)  Theinvestment properties of the Group were last revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer at

31st December 2011, on the basis of market value (2010: same).

(b)  The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

20. REVE-—XEE »

@ AEEZREMERE - REBTEE
EEARERTERATNR-E——&
A=t RETEEEEETER
“E-ZF AR o

b AEBREEMEZE@ITMOT

31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—8~
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHEx FHET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBFE:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NFI0ES0FE 2 HE 28,700 24,700

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are set out in note 44.

() At31st December 2011, the Group's investment properties of
approximately HK$28,700,000 (2010: HK$24,700,000) were pledged to

secure banking facilities of the Group as mentioned in Note 46.

BB REEGERNERZ RRKERS L
BRI 5E44 o

© 6Pt RZT——F+=A
=+—H REEZREYEL28,700000
BT (ZZ—Z4F 1247000007 L) B A
ERRERITRLE 2 A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY

21. B EE-AKBRAEARTF

(@) Group (a) ZTEE
Deferred  Outsourcing
development contract  Patents and Cub  Customer  Software  Customer
Goodwill costs costs licences memberships  relationship ~ technology ~ contracts Total
BE M BHER
BE  BERE  AHHX BR &FeE EFBE LR  EFAY by
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THT FhEx FhEx FhEx Thx TFiEn TiEx TR T
At 15t April 2010 RZE-ZFMA—-H
Cost ( - 16412 1,156 7800 900 - - - 26,268
Accumulated amortisation RitBERAE

and impairment - (16412) (1,156) (7.800) (200) - - - (25,568)

Net book amount REFE - - - - 700 = = = 700
Nine months ended BE-Z-TF1ZAR

315t December 2010 =t+-HIEAEA

Opening net book amount HREFE - - - - 700 = - = 700

Reversal of impaiment ERRE - - - - 200 - - - 200

Disposals/write-off (note b) & /M (fEb) - - - - - - - - -

Closing net hook amount BREEFE - - - - 900 - - = 900
At315t December 2010 RZE-ZET-A=1-H

Cost KA = = = = 900 = = = 900

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 #35 RRl{E - - - - - - - - -

Net book amount REFE - - - - 900 - = = 900
At 1st January 2011 Rn=E-—%-A—-H

Cost R - - - = 90 = = = 90

Accumulated amortisation RHEHRAE

and impairment - - - - - - - - -

Net book amount REFE - - - - 900 - - = 900
Year ended 315t December 2011 EESE St
=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE - - - - 90 - - = 900
Acquisition of subsidiaries kB AR (FE22)

(note 22) 35274 - - - - 4989 6,767 279 47309
Amortisation B = = = = = (759) (1029) (284) (2071)
Exchange realignment EXAHE (1.061) - - - - m7) (159) 5 (1332)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 34213 - - - 900 4114 5579 - 443806

At 315t December 2011 RZB-——F+-A=1-H
Cost AR 34213 - - - 900 4839 6,564 270 46,786
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2T # R fE - - - - - (725) (985) (270) (1.980)
Net book amount FHFE 3213 - - - 90 4114 5579 - 4806
(@  During the year ended 31st December 2011, amortisation of 2,071,000 (nine @ REE—Z——F+-A=+—RHLFE #
months ended 31st December 2010: nil) has been charged to “cost of services $42,071,0008 T (BE=F—ZTF+-_A=+—
rendered” in the consolidated income statement. HIENEAR: &) ERGEBREZ [RERK
KR R AIRR o
(b)  During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, deferred development b)) REE=Z—ZTF+-_A=+—HLLNEAA"

costs, outsourcing contract costs, patents and licenses were written-off.

BB R - SN QKIS » R R ERE
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RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Company

BEEE-AKEREALQT

(%)

(b) AAF

Club membership

=g
HKS$'000
FHT
At Tst April 2010 R-ZZE—ZFMA—H
Cost B 500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RRE (200)
Net book amount BREFE 300
Nine months ended 31st December 2010 HE-_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HLENEA
Opening net book amount EAIRRTE B 300
Reversal of impairment (note 11) B oA Bk 11) 200
Closing net book amount BCRARME (A 500
At 31st December 2010 and 2011 RZE—ZFR=_T——F+=-A=+—H
Cost B 500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RRE =
Net book amount BREFE 500
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY

22

(Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified
according to operating segment. As at 31st December 2011, goodwill of

HK$34,213,000 is allocated to the IT Services operating segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the higher of the
fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use calculation. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projects based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three year period. No growth is assumed for cash

flows beyond the three year period.

The key assumptions used for calculation are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

21.

RE VI IRRMEE

—E-—FtZASt—ALEE

BEEE-AKERAEALT
(#8)

AERE R
AEEIRERBEEDEREZAEE R
SELEN CREEEEMN) -R_T——F
+ZA=+—HB ®mE342130008 TESEE
BB RBEE D -

BeEE A TRESADREAEER
HERABERAEEAEEMEZBREE

FE o UL ERTE RS R E it /R E=F 5
2 BIEE AREEER Z BRBAIR SRR
BERRBEA=-FHIZREREFEMER-

ARt Ez T 2/MRWT

2011

=F——F

Average revenue growth rate AW AL R R 23%
Discount rate rm=x 15.5%

The annual revenue growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts of the
market. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to

the segment.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 28th March 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of
i-Sprint Innovations Pte. Ltd. (“i-Sprint"). i-Sprint group is principally engaged
in the business of developing, distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products. Depending on the upcoming
financial performance of i-Sprint, the cash consideration for this acquisition
may range from $$6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,000,000)
to 5$7,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$47,400,000). Details of this
acquisition were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 28th
March 2011 and 31st March 2011.

22,

FrfE Rz F e R B H TR — - PR M 2
FRERBAFTIRE AR RRED AR 2
R L o

E(Best

RZZT—F=A =+ N8B  RNEBEYFE-Sprint
Innovations Pte. Ltd. ( [i-Sprint | ) #9100%% 7N 4
e iSprinttE B F ZH BT - HH EAR
SRR LB B B m S o R Fi-Sprintf 2R
M BRRAME RERENRESRENT
6,000,000 N3 7T (48 E F 436,000,000/ 7T ) &=
7,.900,000% 13K 7T (48 & 7 4947,400,0007 7T ) °
ERAREHEERNBSHA =T ——F=A
ZHNBRZE——F=ZA=+—HHAEARQHA

NER-

117



1 1 8 Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4 £ B AR 2 7 | Annual Report 2011 4 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

22. BUS'NESS COMB'NAT'ON (Continued)
A goodwill of $$5,719,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35,274,000),
intangible assets of $$1,951,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,035,000), net tangible liabilities of $$195,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,203,000) and deferred income tax liabilities of $$332,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,046,000) were recognised in relation
to this acquisition. The goodwill arises from a number of factors. The most
significant amongst these is the premium attributable to a pre-existing,
well-positioned business that is in operation in a competitive market. Other
significant factors include synergies through accessing a highly skilled

workforce and obtaining economies of scale.

The Group's competitive position in the information technology market is
expected to be strengthened as the acquisition provides the opportunity
for the Group to serve more clients with regional presence, especially those
in the financial services sectors. Besides which, the addition of i-Sprint’s
products provides an opportunity for the Group to expand its credential in
management solutions and to enrich the Group's existing security solutions

offerings.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for i-Sprint and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised as at the

acquisition date.

22,

¥¥a6t@®

N2 A E BL A2 T8 WA B AR 7 25,719,000 AN
#Tt (HEE R 49352740008 7T) - EF B E
1,951,000%7 A0 3% 7T (48 & 712,035,000 7T) ~ B
T2 B11E195,00087 h3E 7T (ABE 491,203,000
L) BAESER A B E332,00057 M3 T (FAE A
2,046,000/ 7T) - HMEBELEBZHEREZ HP &
FENRRFILEAEELFF RIS HELE
DIEBMEAZRE MEMETERRBRE
APRE TIAREBCERBERSZAMNEEZ
R Rk

BHRUBEAAREESHRBRAEENELH
BEe FHReRRBEZES HHMAEE
EEMBEMS T ZSHF A SIAZE - It
S+ ¥4 7 i-SprintEE f & AN S [ 75 R4 R B RE
ERBRN RMIEBAEERBREHEART R
HEZRH-

IR A FEi-SprintPR s A 2 HAE K U iE B H
BB EERMARBBEZHASE-

HK$'000
FHET

Purchase consideration: EERE:
— Cash paid —BfRE 30,222
— Fair value of contingent consideration payable —ENIAREBZAREE 13,838
Total purchase consideration BERERRE 44,060
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE —FT——F+ - A=+—HIFE

22. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 22. ¥ &0
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FIEER BRI EERMAEERZERREHE
Fair value
AREE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents B NBEEEEY 7,530
Property, plant and equipment W WER&E 307
Intangibles: mREE:
— Customer contracts —RBEA&H% 279
— Customer relationship —ZFPR% 4989
- Software technology — B KAl 6,767
Trade receivables FEUE 5318 6,277
Other receivables A e GRIR 4554
Long-term bank deposit REASRITER 147
Trade payables ENE 5 FE (151)
Other payables H b A FROB (11,107)
Receipts in advance TE W ez (8,760)
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSHEE (2,046)
Total identifiable net assets Al RIE EREEE 8,786
Goodwill EES 35,274
44,060
HK$'000
FHET
Acquisition-related costs Ug B2 4B RA R AN 2211
HK$'000
FHET
Outflow of cash to acquire business, WEEEBK 2RE R
net of cash acquired (MERPIBER E)
— cash consideration paid on date of acquisition —RKEHBENRERE (30,222)
— consideration paid during the year —FREMNKE (1,579)
— cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired ~ —FTIWEEH B AR ZIRE MRS EEY 7,530

Cash outflow on acquisition i 2 RE R (24,271)
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HBIFE

22. BUS'NESS COMB'NAT'ON (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Contingent consideration

Depending on the upcoming financial performance of i-Sprint, the
cash consideration for this acquisition may range from $$6,000,000
equivalent to approximately HK$36,000,000) to SGD7,900,000
equivalent to approximately HK$47,400,000). SGD4,900,000
equivalent to approximately HK$30,222,000) and SGD250,000
equivalent to approximately HK$1,579,000) was paid on the date

of acquisition and during the year, respectively. The potential
undiscounted amount of all future payments that the Group could
be required to make under this arrangement is between SGD850,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,085,000) and SGD2,750,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,451,000). The fair value of the
amount payable of SGD2,254,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,485,000) was recognised as contingent consideration payable
and measured at fair value at balance sheet date. The amount was
estimated based on an assumed probability weighting in fulfilling
the performance requirements. During the period from the date of
acquisition to 31st December 2011, a fair value loss of HK$1,226,000
was recognised in the profit or loss for the contingent consideration

payable.

Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade receivables is SGD1,018,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,277,000). The gross contractual amount for
trade receivables due is SGD1,018,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,277,000), all of which is expected to be collectible.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of SGD3,733,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,162,000) and net profit of
SGD604,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,640,000) to the Group
for the period from 28th March 2011 to 31st December 2011. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1st January 2011, consolidated revenue
and consolidated profit for the year ended 31st December 2011 would
have been HK$1,542,897,000 and HK$44,440,000, respectively.

22. ¥ 86 @)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HANRE

BT i-Sprintf R B B 5 R R T E - 2 TEUL
8% 1938 & R 8 1 F-6,000,000%7 103 7T (48
& 7 £936,000,0007% 7T ) Z7,900,000%7 A K
7T (1B & 7 #947,400,0007 7T ) ° 2 B UK
% B H I F R B X 194,900,000% H14% 7T
(48 25 72 #930,222,0007 7T ) §250,000% Hi
¥t (FER£Y1,579,0007 7T ) < 1RIRILIR
T AEBAEX 2 IARRARZ
BTEARBEIE £ 581 T°850,0008T 03 7T (48
F 45,085,000 7T ) 522,750,00057 114K 7T
(FBE R 4916,451,00098 7T ) © 2,254,000 1N
Wt 2 & 58 (16 % 0 4913,485,000%8
T ZARBEEREE BERAENK
AREBRIZAAEBEE - S EHIRIER
TEER BB SR Z AErTREIEER (A -
RERPE—_BE——F+_A=+—
HERE  BERER S ARERNBRIRER
A A(BEEEE1,226000/ 7T ©

Fir Wa B8 HE WK IR

FEWE 5 5RIE 2 A (B 1A 431,018,000%7 I
# 7T (FEE 7 496,277,000% 7T ) © El| HAFE UK
B SHIA 26 K REEA1,01800031 I3 T
(HEE R 496,277,000 7T ) * FTE RIATEER
BEYER

U %5 R s R & Rt

2 7% U8 i P B B 2 WK &= /%3,733,000%T AN
# T (FEE R 49231620008 7C) KB =F
—F=A=+N\BE=T—F+=HA
=+ —BHETAREE 2 HFFRER604,000
N T (FHE F 43,640,000 7T ) © ik
BR-Z——F—A—RA#T #==F
——F+-_A=t+-—BLEFEZHEEK
= R A s R 5 Bl A1,542,897,00098 7T &
44,440,000 7T, ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

23. BERNAERE-AKH

31st December 31st December

2011 2010
—E——-F —T—EF
t=A=+-8H tZA=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

At 1st January 2011 and 1st April 2010 RZE—F—A—AK
—ZE-THFMA—H 1,865 3,095
Share of results of associates FE(RER & R R EE 913 224
Dividends received BB (1,457) (1,454)
Exchange realignment b R (34) =
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 1,287 1,865
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2011 and 31st RZZE——F+_A=+—RHk=_Z—ZF
December 2010 are as follows: T RA=1+—8 AEBE 2 LEMEERFF

BT
Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

Country/place of by the Company

incorporation EREBESE
Name of associate MR Z ERTZERSE Principal activities
BE AR A Bx % EEBEMOL FTEEKR
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3% Provision of engineering and
RERGE ORF) BR AT A software services
120 T2 R B AR TS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Thailand 49% Provision of engineering and
Limited B software services

M TIE REM RS
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP (Continued)

The Group's share of results of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, and its assets and

liabilities, are as below:

23. BENTER -AEEH )
AEEEERE RGN CRPDABR AR
EEUREAERA BT

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—EF——-F —E-TF

+=BA=+-—8 +—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Total assets BEE 5,076 7426

Total liabilities BAaE (1,213) (1,956)

Net assets FEE 3,863 5,470

Group's share of net assets of an associate AEBERMBMENAFEE 1,287 1,865

Total revenue Pl 7,801 5,747

Total profit for the year/period F BN A8 A 2,740 673
Group's share of results of an associate for REBF HANENS

the year/period BERNBZEER 913 224

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL

Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised

share of results of this associate, extracted from the relevant management

AL BB R 1 FERR FE G ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited 518 « JE(E 2B & R B2 &/
HRRBHZABREESE (BERaHEQ

accounts of the associate, both for the year/period and cumulatively, are as RIZHEEERRE )T :
follows:
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——F HE-_ZT—ZF
+=B=+—H +=—A=+—H
LEE 1ENEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unrecognised share of profit of an associate F/HRRERREA
for the year/period B A & 43 2

Accumulated unrecognised share of

losses of an associate

RET AR EB L RREE

526 569
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24, &#&EU gl5
DS EN|
ERMTEZSHBREERAR TS E:

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - rTREMIAE-ARE

GROUP AND COMPANY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the

line items below:

31st December

31st December

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
+=—HA=+-—H +-A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Group AEE
Loans and receivables ,\/A&r&‘”ﬂlmlﬁ
Trade receivables EUE 5K 208,682 165,591
Other receivables and deposits H b pE UL TR Iﬁ &Tﬁzﬁ 9,209 8,136
Amounts due from customers for EHTIRERERPHK
contract work 190,615 161,659
Finance lease receivables e R & ERIE 22,737 5124
Long-term bank deposit REIRITER 155 =
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIERITFER 860 1,924
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEBY 108,404 195,552
540,662 537,986
Group REME
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKAT R SREARE
Trade payables ERE 538 200,432 193,000
Other payables H b A FRIB 9,677 7,800
210,109 200,800
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEANBEGFABEZ
profit and loss TRAE
Contingent consideration payable eSS ARAE 13,485 =
Company NN
Loans and receivables BRI EWRIE
Other receivables and deposits HEMERSRIERES - 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries Sy ENEIEN 111,791 88,228
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEBY 1,453 8,240
113,244 96,470
Company b NN
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHEKAT R SREAE
Other payables 1 \ﬁﬂFEH%ZIE 179 227
Amount due to associates IREE N B FIR - 2
Amount due to a subsidiary RSB A ﬂmlﬁi 217 468
396 697
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25. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

26

27

25. RMB AR ZRE-FARQF

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRAD » R AN 134,623 134,623

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 48 to the

consolidated financial statements.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and are unsecured and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

INVENTORIES - GROUP

AEEZ TEWEBRRHBERNG S BRE
By E48

26. FEUR (FEAY) B BB 2 R SR IE —
NN
R (M) BB 28 ) 9K UB A 4 1 R A
EREE YT EABTAE ARBESY
B % BEERKAABEES -

27. FE-FKKH

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-FF

t+t=A=+—H +tZA=1+—~

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Goods held for resale BIEEEZEY 37,346 27,499
Goods pending customers’ acceptance EREEFPEMZED 63,312 49,473
100,658 76,972

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance mainly

represent computer equipment and software products.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ‘cost of goods
sold” amounted to HK$808,780,000 during the year ended 31st December
2011 (nine months ended 31st December 2010: HK$510,438,000).

RIEBEZENREREPENZENTIER
BREE R ES-

RBE-_E——F+-_A=+—HIFE®
RAERZTLFATHEXNE] 2TFERER B
8087800008 T (BE=T—TF+-A=+—
B -8 A 5104380007 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

28, FEUN & 5 2008 — A E

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

—E——-F —T—EF

t=A=+-8H tZA=1+—H

HK$'000 HKS'000

THET FHET

Trade receivables FE WU E 5 538 209,197 165,903
Less: provision for impairment of receivables R R GRIE 2 R (B B (515) (312
Trade receivables - net JEURE 5 FE — 558 208,682 165,591
Less: non-current portion of trade receivables B EWE B IRIB 2 ERBIE D (1,729) (1,869)
Current portion of trade receivables BWESHBEZ R D 206,953 163,722

As at 31st December 2011, all non-current receivables are due within five

years from the balance sheet date (2010: same).

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days

and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances

are reviewed regularly by senior management.

An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at balance sheet date,

based on ageing from payment due date is as follows:

F R -

“E——F+-A=+—H FMBEFRDE
WHRIBHRNEERRDAFRIB(—E-F

AEBzBEEFER FZH0BEED-
AEERREEEESRUABEERRAER
1K - = R B IR B B 8 2 FORECE T

B5E-

FEW B 5 SRR B RS
FREe D ATIAT

31st December

HARBNREPAZ

31st December

2011 2010

—E2——F i

+=HA=+-—H +=ZA=+—~H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current RN EA 143,950 126,695
Within 30 days 30K AR 28,702 15,092
31 -60 days 31E60K 15,567 4234
61 - 90 days 61290 7,493 6,454
Over 90 days B E0K 13,485 12,528
209,197 165,903
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)
As at 31st December 2011, trade receivables of HK$64,732,000 (2010:

HK$38,896,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of

independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The

ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

28. EIWE ZFIE—AKE (&)
RZT—F+=-A=+—8 EBREHHE
64,732,000 7T ( =& — Z £ : 38,896,000/ 7T.)
AEBHMEXRTRE - ZSEKRESHELES
ZW T RIERCHR B LR - 25

WEBRIBZBRE DT

31st December

31st December

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

+=A=+-—AH +=ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Past due less than 90 days BEAT B90H 51,762 26,680
Past due over 90 days 7 8RB0 H 12,970 12,216
64,732 38,896

As at 31st December 2011, trade receivables of HK$515,000 (2010:

HK$312,000) of the Group were past due and impaired. The ageing of these

receivables are over 90 days, and full provision has been made on these

receivables. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to several

customers, which are experiencing financial difficulties.

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZT——F+ZA=+—H AEEZEK
B 5 FIE5150007% 7T ( — & — T4 : 312,000/
7T) BRE R E TR o B R EMRIE 2 BR e
#O0H - I B Fh Ut & FE R IE 1E 2 B o
ERRERBKRIEE ZRHZENEBERE 2

BPER-

FEWE 5 TR AT I EHEHE

31st December

31st December

2011 2010
—g——fF —T-TF

+=—HA=+-—H +=-A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

HKS B 152,978 109,242
usb E7T 13,157 15,047
Renminbi (‘RVB) ARHE 11,856 16,909
Thailand Baht (“THB") B 7 4,037 13471
SGD s ot 2,256 =
Macau Pataca ("MOP") SR 10,100 7,680
New Taiwan Dollar ("NTD") A 12,441 3,554
Others HAh 2,372 =
209,197 165,903
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE —FT——F+ - A=+—HIFE

28. EWWE S RIE—XKEH o)

As at 31st December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate their fair values. The fair value of the non current
portion of trade receivables are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 7% (2010: 7%).

Movements of the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

R-BE——FR-_ZE-—TF+_A=+—8H"
BN B 578 2 FREERE R AEBERE &
WE SFIEZ IERBDI N ARBEIBIEEE
RN IRZRERAE (ZTE—FF:7%) °

REEZEKRESFIAZRERBESHNT

31st December 31st December

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
+=A=t+—H +=-A=+—8”
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at the beginning of the year/period F AN RR 312 2,851
Provision for impairment of receivables FEWURIE 2 R R 758 863
Reversal of provision for impairment of 1 0] j& W R IR E < BB
receivables (554) (1,597)
Receivables written off during the year/period F/BAME R EEkE
as uncollectible & YRR - (1,811)
Exchange realignment ME X B 1) 6
Balance at the end of the year/period FHR 515 312

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included as part of selling expenses and other cost of services in the

consolidated income statement (note 11).

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when

there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

FEMRIE 2 BB 2 R MR E AT AR A
BEREAHEBAREMRE 2 KA—E D
(HizE11) ©

BEERNGR 2SR —RNAHT S REERESIN
B R HIEH o

REEA BT HEMERRIERER-
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29. B EMEERR

AT ARBEREESEEBERERBENFR

29. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and their

present values at the year end are as follows:

ZREBRERERIE:

31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—EF——-F —E-TF
+=B=+—8H +—-A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Non-current receivables Ik 7% Bh e W FRIB
Finance leases — gross receivables AR E R IEREE 16,901 3,846
Unearned finance income REELZBE WA (888) (636)
16,013 3,210
Current receivables 7 B FE WK T8
Finance leases — gross receivables R ERERIEAT 7,472 1,923
Unearned finance income RERER 2 g & WA (748) (©)
6,724 1914
Gross receivables from finance leases: REMERE 2 EWRIAREE
No later than 1 year —F R 7,472 1,923
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FERAER 16,901 3,846
24,373 5,769
Unearned future finance income on BEHE R R RFE WA
finance leases (1,636) (645)
Net investment in finance leases RREHECKRERE 22,737 5,124
The net investment in finance lease may be REREZIREFE
analysed as follows: AR T FEEID T
- No later than 1 year - —FR 6,724 1914
— Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ——FHEAFA 16,013 3,210
22,737 5124
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30. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

30. HtBRWRIE - RERFANRK
H-AEERAEQT

Group Company
r5E PN
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—e--&# -T-IF ¥ % C-T%F
t=ZA=+-H +ZA=+—8B +=ZHA=+-H +ZA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TERT TET
Other receivables Hopn FE YRR 2,614 1340 - 2
Deposits b 5,649 6,284 - -
Prepayments SEIE N 14,436 15469 609 358
Amount due from the ultimate REERRARRK
holding company 946 512 - -
23,645 23,605 609 360
The amount due from the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest BREERARIR T REER 28 RAREXK
free and repayable on demand. Eig-
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HERTIA TSI BB E
Group Company
rEE VNG|
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
=e—-% -3-3F  c%—-F -T-%F
+=A=+-B f-A=t-8 +=A=t-B +=A=t-"H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET TERT FET
HKS BT 13,073 12,726 609 360
THB Tk 4,076 2375 - =
RMB AR 2,240 2192 - -
NTD ik 1,152 2,891 - -
SGD BT 904 - - -
Others Hith 2,200 3421 - -
23,645 23,605 609 360
As at 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, the carrying amounts of RZFE——F+_A=+—BR=-_Z—FTF

other receivables, deposits and prepayments approximated their fair values.
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RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HBIFE

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 3. BN IREREFRE LK
CONTRACT WORK - GROUP =
As at 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, the balance RZE——F+_A=+—"BR-ZZEE—ZF
represented contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised TZR=+—HB EREFMEEZALKAN
losses and progress billings. EERR AR E EREBMER MK
32. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED 32. REIRITER  ZRFIBITERK
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH REERREZEEY—XEE
EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY RZA&RAF
Group Company
F5E KA
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF —E——F —T-TF
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—-H +=B=+t-A +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART FTAT TEx FiET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 100,244 132,309 1,453 8,240
Short-term bank deposits RBRTER 8,160 63,243 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 108,404 195,552 1,453 8,240
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITER 860 1924 = =
Less: Non-current portion B IERB)E S (498) = = -
Current portion of restricted ZRHFFITFERZ
bank deposits TENER (D 362 1,924 - =
Long-term bank deposit REFITER 155 = - -

Restricted bank deposits represented fixed term deposit placed in
commercial banks that were pledged against banking facilities and

performance bonds granted to the Group.

Long-term bank deposit represented fixed term deposit placed in

commercial banks whose maturity date is over 1 year.

Bank balances, short-term, long-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits carry interest at market rates with average interest rate of 0.10%,
0.45% ,0.70% and 0.50% (2010: 0.03%, 0.69%, nil and 0.31%) per annum.

SR BRI IR RN AR RIT ZERE
H RZEERCERERRNEEERRITRE
RBHRF OB @ o

FRHRITEREFRRERRIT M BE
—EZEHRER-

IRITHR EBE REARTHEREZRHIRT
BFRIETISF R B FHFEFEE010%
0.45% * 0.70%5%0.50% ( = ZF — T F : 0.03% *
0.69% * f& % 031%) ©
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RE VI IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE —FT——F+ - A=+—HIFE

32. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

32. RHAIBITER - ZRFIBITER
RESRESEEY - F5H
)& YNCIRE )

ReMREFBYMUTHEEHE

Group Company
iy NG|

31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —ZE-%F —E-—-F —Z-%F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+-H +=HB=t-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAERT FTAT FTHEx FTET
HKS AT 50,221 161,953 1,447 8230
RMB AR 6,532 1333 3 7
NTD Hats 18,173 18,058 = =
UsD ey 22,880 2,963 3 3
SGD N3 7T 4,129 = - =
Others Hit 6,469 11,245 = =
108,404 195,552 1,453 8,240

Restricted bank deposits were denominated in the following currencies:

ERGIBITEFATINESFE

Group Company
rEE ARH
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
8% ke S £ 2 —8—-% ke B 13
+=A=t-B +=-A=+-B +=A=t+-B +=-A=1+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET TERT FTExT
THB Rk 860 1924 - =

860

1,924 - _
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32. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

Long-term bank deposit was denominated in the following currencies:

32. REASRITER - ZRHIBLITFER
RESRESEEY - F5H
)& YNCIRE )

RHSRTFRA T EEHE

Group Company
rEE AN
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-——F —E-%F —E——-F —T-TF
+t=A=t-B +-A=t-B +=A=t-BA +=ZA=1+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TET THT
SGD H BT 155 - - -
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. R
Number of shares Amount
RHEE k]
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g—-§  -T-%I% -5  -T-%I%
t=A=t-A +=-A=t+-B +=RA=+-B +=-A=1+-AH
'000 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fig TERT FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREMEI0BT AR
Authorised: EERA:
At Tst April 2010, 31st December 2010 R-ZZ—-ZFMA—H"
and 31st December 2011 —T-TF
+TZA=+—-HkK
—T——F
+ZA=+—H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRER:
At beginning and end of RE/ ENRE/ F
the period/year 311,403 311,403 31,140 31,140

There was no ordinary share issued for the year ended 31st December 2011

(2010: same).

s
il

—F A=+ BT ERER
TEER (ZF-BF:HER) -
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34. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VIR MEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

34. RE—FTKERE AT
Group (@ *TKH

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E2——F —E -5

+=H=+-—H +=ZA=+—~H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Special reserve R 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserves YMEEHEE 83,844 63,685
Translation reserve IE ¥ 1,099 3,277
Retained earnings {RE & F 252,247 219,842
371,540 321,154

Movements of each component of the reserves are set out in the - " PO
i’ RESBIZEDBRGAESEEB X -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Company (b) EATF
Accumulated
Special losses/Retained
reserve earnings Total
ES -V
BRI E REER MEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
At 1st April 2010 RZE—TFWOA—H 95,513 (10,240) 85,273
Profit for the period B = 12,548 12,548
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend SRR ERR B - 570 570
Interim dividend for REBEE_T—TF
the nine months ended +=ZA=+—H1
31st December 2010 NER 2 ER S - (12,456) (12,456)
At 31st December 2010 RZE—ZF+-A=+—H 95513 (9,578) 85935
At 1st January 2011 RZZT——%—HA—H 95,513 (9,578) 85,935
Profit for the year FRmEF - 36,383 36,383
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend SRR ERR B - 45 45
Final dividend for the nine months ~ MEZE T —ZT4F
ended 31st December 2010 +=—A=+—8L
NER 2 RERRE - (12,456) (12,456)
At 31st December 2011 R=B——F+=A=+—H 95,513 14,394 109,907
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34. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

(i) The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the par value of the Company's shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired, and the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital during the year ended 31st
March 1999. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if

there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(2)  therealisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

35. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date, based

on payment due date, is as follows:

4. FE-—AREBRADT &

(b) ZARF (#)

()  ARBZERFEEEARRRIAR
B8 B B BATAR A B AT 2 AR 1D
EEEMKBHBAREEFEZ
ZH - NERBE-ANAAFEZ=AR
=t+—REFEHRERATMELZ
ER-BEARE-NAN—FLH
E(RERT) B A EEIRAAE
TFEIE - AIABSRTAT IR -

(1) ARFRRFIAERNREE
ERER BRI NAE:

%

@ ARAEEZ TLRBELE
AR B R E B B TIRA
A TR A5 36 B B 2 R o

35 RN ESRE-AEE

BN B S HRIANEE B RBENFBIH A 2 BREk

AT -

31st December

31st December

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF

+=A=+-—H +=ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Current ENHA 114,313 126,898
Within 30 days 30RAR 54,988 39,055
31-60 days 31E60K 21,491 14,948
61 -90 days 61E90K 2,206 1634
Over 90 days B 3Bo0K 7,434 10,465
200,432 193,000
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35. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP (Continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

36

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

Ut 75 R R B AE

REER

—E-—FtZASt-ALEE

35. ENESZRIE-XKEH )

BERTIA TSI E M ETHE

31st December

31st December

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF

t=A=t-~ +t=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

HKS BT 149,273 140,205
RVB AR 2,254 5330
usD EY 30,559 33,520
THB B 7 4,176 5510
Others Hitn 14,170 8435
200,432 193,000

At 31st December 2011, the carrying values of trade payables approximated

their fair values (2010: same).

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP

R-B——F+-_A=+—RH ENEFHRE

2 B A A e (E A
R) -

—T T4

36. Htt BN REREFEH &

AND COMPANY EERAEARQT
Group Company
iy 3 N
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——F =Z T —g——fF —T-EF
t=A=+-8 +ZA=+-B +=A=t-B +=-A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT FET
Other payables HinERFIA 8,217 5853 179 227
Accruals fEst &R 34,535 39934 4,666 11,110
Deferred income R A - 456 - -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries KRR ZH B A RFIE - 492 - -
Amount due to associates REE DA RIFIE 1,460 1455 - 2
44,212 48,190 4,845 11,339
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36. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP 6. HtENFHEREFTER - &
AND COMPANY (Continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

37

EBERADT @

EHRTIA T EHEHE:

Group Company
F5E AN
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T T —E——F —T-TF
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+-H +=B=+t-HA +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTAT THET TAT
HKS BT 30,148 42,479 4,845 11,339
RMB AR 452 1723 - =
SGD H & T 6,923 = - =
Others Hit 6,689 3,988 - =
44,212 48,190 4,845 11339
At 31st December 2011 and 31st December 2010, the carrying values of RZE——F+_A=+—BR-_Z—ZTF
other payables and accruals approximated their fair values. TZA=+—H HtENFEBEREFTERZ
REEHEAEAABERS
The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and associates are unsecured, interest RERKB KBt & A R 2 RIE A E IR

free and are repayable on demand.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE - GROUP

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to:

U]

(i)

NG|
RERERERER

37. ANFIE-XKE

‘ﬂlﬂ

TEUGRIB BIRA T 2t 155 BT R 2 #A 3Kk

delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated income 0 XIER(ERERRNEELGEBRE
statement upon the delivery of goods; and ®R) &
provision of service which is recognised in the consolidated income (i) IRERE (AR BERF & QTHEN RS

statement over the service period stipulated in the respective

customer contract.

HRER S BRRER) °
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38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND

COMPANY

The movement in the deferred income tax is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 # %= —

RE VIR MEE

T —F+-A=t+-HLFE

38. EEFIBHR —AEBRARQT

BEFTSH 2 B8

Group Company
r5E NG|
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-——-F —ZE-%F —E-—-F —Z-%F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+-H +=A=t-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TR FAET
t 15t January 2011 and 1st April 2010 RZE—%—A—HBRk
—Z-ZFNA—-H 17,996 10,464 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 22) Wik B 2w (FiE22) 2,046 = - =
Tax charged directly to equity BIBERAT EENG 3,984 5312 - -
Tax (credited)/charged to the (3t N) / ks ESEER
consolidated income 2 BIE (FiizE15)
statement (note 15) (1,596) 2,220 (294) -
Exchange realignment ERR=EE (46) = - =
At 315t December 2011 and RZZT——
315t December 2010 +ZA=+—-HkK
+=A=+-H 22,384 17,99 (294) =

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2011, the Group had
unused tax losses of HK$29,445,000 (2010: HK$13,637,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$6,187,000 (2010: HK$646,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$23,258,000
(2010: HK$12,991,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of
which HK$8,545,000 (2010: HK$8,462,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years,
HK$6,402,000 (2010: HK$3,514,000) will expire within 5 to 10 years and
HK$8,311,000 (2010: HK$1,015,000) with unlimited expiry date.

ARFIEEEIREBTENSEA TSR

RRERTREF T AR E ARERBELER
BREE-R_T——F+-_A=+—H8B 'K
& BB AR E AR IEE 18294450008 T (=T —
T4F 113,637,000/ 70 ) A] ARVEH S AR AR T © IR
EFIBEEC A @EE61870008 T (=%
—Z4F 1 646,000/8 7T ) HERR o B AR BE TEIRI AR 2R
i K SRR - R I AR 5 88 T 2.23,258,000%8 7T (=
T—EF 112,991,000/ 70) RIELCEHIBEAE

H 18,545,000/ 7T (ZF—F4F : 8,462,000 7T )
%Mu@iﬁﬂ@ﬂ%@N%%ﬁ(:?*?
F £ 3,514,000 70 ) #5210 A I HA f ERAED

H38,311,0008 7T (ZF—ZF : 1,015,000;%75) °
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38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND 38. BELEFIER —FKERERF
COMPANY (Continued) (8)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable EEAHABBEEERIFEANARIBEAEY
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the AOEATTHERN BZEEERBEER -
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The movement BE R G AR RERIE & E R 8
in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances BEEHBABEEREHE RNE R BT
within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year/period is as follows: SHEERBE (REHER-—THBEEER &
ERAID) A0T
Group Company
A& NN
Accelerated
tax  Revaluation of
depreciation properties Tax loss Total Tax loss
MEBEHE WEE BB @t B|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET AT THIT THT THT
At 1st April 2010 RZT—-FFMA—AH 3336 7,357 (229 10464 =
Charged to consolidated income statement %R & 18 25 BR AN BR 2,097 = 123 2220 =
Charged to equity B R ARG = 5312 = 5312 =
At 315t December 2010 and WZZ—TF+ZA=1—H
Tt January 2011 R-Z——%-f—H 5433 12669 (106) 1799 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 22) Werg B A A (P sE22) 2,046 = = 2,046 =
Credited to consolidated income RiREBEEAFTA
statement (682) - 914) (1,596) (294)
Charged to equity EP e - 3,984 - 3984 =
Exchange realignment B 5 A (46) = = (46) =
At 315t December 2011 RZ2—%+-A=t—H 6,751 16653 (1,020) 22,384 (294)
The analysis of deferred tax assets is as follows: REHRIEEE 2 DTWT
Group Company
bS] N
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —T-TF —E——F —T-ZF
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—-H +=HA=t-HA +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTHET TEx FET

Deferred tax assets - to be recovered after EIEFIIBE E — SR iBB
more than 12 months 128 A& 4 el 1,001 = 294 =
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38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND

COMPANY (Continued)

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:

38. EEFIBHR —AEBRARQT

(%)
BB 2T

Group Company
iy VNG|
31st December 31st December 31st December 31st December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T-TE —E——F —T-TF
+t=ZA=+t-H +ZA=+—H +Z=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TR FHET
Deferred tax liabilities - to be recovered ~ IEEF B A E 1B R BB
after more than 12 months GRS 23,385 17,99 = =
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets), net  EIEFHIBEEE
(BE) %8 22,384 17,996 (294) =

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 16th

October 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any

employee and/or director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The

maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted

to any individual under the Scheme shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate

number of shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon

payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The exercise price is determined

by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of 80%

of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for

the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,

and the nominal value of the shares.

Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which became effective from

1st September 2001, any options granted after 1st September 2001 must

comply with the provisions of the revised Chapter 17. In order for the

Company to be able to grant options to its director and/or other eligible

participants after 1st September 2001, the Scheme was terminated and a

new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to

a resolution passed in the general meeting held on 8th August 2002. As a

result, the Company can no longer grant any further share option under the

Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to 1st September 2001 will

remain in full force and effect.

39. BT E

RBEARASEEMNBARZEMAEE R,
FEZRERBHREHR ARFR—ANEF
THTRBRA—REBER 8 ([%EHE) -
RIBZAEFIR T EMALTZBRERREZ
BHEE RETFEBRZABAETRS
D B2 25% - B IR B RE M AR R H B
HIRERT 28RN B RR MBAS 18
TERRE-TEENAARANESEE
A LR RER R BT R ER S
B B X AT 2 S W T (B 2 80% K Ak £ T (B
FERZBEE-

REBEBZMESZ EHRAE+EEZER (R
—EE-FAA-BER RZZTT-Fh
A—BRELZ EFBRELATNEEIETTS
TLEEZEX - RARARBAIR_ZE—4F
NA—BRAEAEER KEMEERBEE
REBRE AAREREZTE XRER
“EE_FN\ANARTZRRAE BB
IRBRFAN—IEBBAERT B ([FE18)) - &
It AR BTGB RE X S — PRI
BRE-AM R-_ZEE—FAA-RAER
HZFREBRERMARE +RE N MK -
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39. SHARE OPT'ON SCHEMES (Continued)

Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted must be taken up
within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration
per grant. There is no general requirement that an option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors of the
Company is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum
period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the
Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for

the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options;

and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The New Scheme will expire on 7th
August 2012.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme during the year ended
31st December 2011 and the nine months ended 31st December 2010.
There was no share option outstanding at 31st December 2011 and 31st
December 2010.

30. BRRAERE (o

RBFAE ARBEZETRAEERER (B
BARARARENBRABZESR) R L EREIN
REIBARBR R AR 2 BAE
ARBZROBE TSBBAR RN EMR
fl 2 B BT IR 210% o 7 fa] FF 4 T (1]
AT ZBRERREZRNDEE TSEBAR
REPERIRREZ EBEITRE Z21% - ERLE
B ARE L R R 28RAER ZNE
AR HR A B TERR(E - B E—K
HEERBREE ATTRBERERNSERE
BREZ TAKEHMR EARRESERE
PR H AR5 E B AR A Iy - O 175 68 D (AR R 1K
HIR - Al TR 2 MR R ARTESES
REBBEE EEABRE -2 TERERL A
HBH0OFRRITE-TREDNHARRES
EE HEETELRUT=Eh28SE: ()
ROORIBIRER B BB 2 W E : b
I RERERE BB R AR S A AR
PR THE: ROROEE T EHR =T
——FN\AtBE®m-

BE_T——F+_A=+—HLFER=
Z-FF-_A=+—HINER LERE
M ARHERERE - R—F——F+ -7
=t+—RAR-ZE-EFE+-_A=+—R0 UHE
EAI R ARITEE 2 AR -
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution plans:

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees. The MPF
Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance

in December 2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group's contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying director of
the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled to retirement benefits
based on 120% or 175.25% of final average salary multiplied by completed
months of service on attainment of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least
50 with 25 years of services. The assets of the fund are held separately from
those of the Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme is
non-contributory on the part of the director and the Company is obliged to

meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director under the plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at 31st December 2011 and 31st December
2010 were carried by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, independent
actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related
current service cost and past service cost were measured using the projected

unit credit method. The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VI ERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE T ——F+ - A=+—HIFE

40. R K& F 5T 8
REMRETE:
AEBEAMAEAERES G —HRBES
i‘J"?ﬁ%%Eﬂ'i\B%:ﬁﬁiiJr*ﬁHE}f%ﬁ
HED ﬂﬂﬁll‘”* HARTDIREBELRE S
Z%—ﬁ B WRIRERE S 8 2R
H‘J’,Eiﬁﬁ—rﬁ/‘”’\ﬁ AR IBR - mTE S TS
ZﬁFEEﬁEE/\T FIzESIFE BASEE
DRATFN - NEBMEES T EHRE #
ﬁAEﬂi%ﬂi’?wf 8ME-

AERAGTE:
RARNAREERZESTEN—THRATRAT
ZoRIBZTE EEHERZAZETATS
2120%38175.25% T LA BRI F AR 7S TR sk
PATHEMERE - T AFRE KR AR
ZERWRBEHN -ZES CEEREIATNZE
eRE BANRBESRAER -EFHER
ZEtEIER R MAR BIAX AR IEZET &
R TERZBERMNZ KA -

BUREMEESEBERATNARLTEZE
EARRN=ZE——F+=_A=+—HE=Z—
TFEF+_A=t—BZRERNEEZHER
AR~z EE-REEANEME AARE
HE@"%E)ZZS&@?IHW%EJZZKZEEEEEFH%Eﬁﬁ
NIEEZEHE A FEBERZWT:

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

+=A=+-—8 +=—A=+—8

Discount rate LR RS 1.5% 15%
Expected return on plan assets TEHAET 818 E Bl /&) 6.0% 6.0%
Expected rate of salary increases SRR 3.5% 3.0%

Expected return rate on plan assets is determined by reference to historical

data of Hang Seng Index.

G EEZ MRRVELEBERBMZE
LB MEE -
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was
HK$8,201,000 (2010: HK$9,135,000) and the present value of the funded
obligations was HK$9,003,000 (2010: HK$8,833,000). The actuarial value
of these assets represented 91.1% (2010: 103.4%) of the benefits that had
accrued to members. The deficit of HK$802,000 (2010: surplus of HK$302,000)
is to be cleared over the estimated remaining service period of the current

membership of one year.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement during the year/

period in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

40.

RARBEREE @)

*”ﬁ@@m 5T &1 & 2 T 18 /38,201,000
T (ZE—F 191350008 L)  MESEM
25%@7%9003000}67&(* —Z 4 : 8,833,000
BL) WEBECKEEEHEENKERE
Mz 291.1% (ZF—Z4 :1034% ) ° 802,000/
TLZARTF (ZZT—FF : Z#R302,000747T) 1§ 7
WAEK B Z A5 FIERAR TS B — F A aH o

B/ HERAERMERAN G
E Z%%EZZDT

For the For the

year ended nine months ended

31st December 31st December

2011 2010
HE_2——F BE-ZT-Z

+=A=+-B  +-A=t+-~

IEFE IENEA

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHET FHET

Current service costs IR B AR 7% A AR 263 246
Interest cost F B AR 132 282
Expected return on plan assets TEHAET 818 E R &) (553) (496)
Net actuarial gain recognised in the year/period AR &,/ BRI iR 2 F R H Wi za (141) @311)
(299) (279)

The credit for the year/period of HK$299,000 (nine months ended 31st
December 2010: HK$279,000) has been included in administrative expenses.

The actuarial loss on plan assets was HK$1,017,000 (nine months ended 31st
December 2010: gain HK$703,000).

£/ HRNE A Z RIEA2990008 T (BE-F
—ZFE+-A=+—HIEN@EA : 2790007 7T)

BRERITHRERS -

HEIEE 2 BEEIEE10170008 T (HE-Z

—ZTFE+ - A=+—HIEAMEA : K25703,000
BIT) °
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40. BIKBREFHE ()

AAKEARAEENTE 2 BEEEMIIA

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s

obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: BEABRZESENT:
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—EF——-F —E-TF
+=A=+-—H +—-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Present value of funded obligations ESBERZHE 9,003 8,833
Fair value of plan assets rEEEZ AAEE (8,201) (9,135)
Deficit/(Surplus) RE/ (BE) 802 (302)
Net actuarial (loss)/gain not recognised AR EREE (Fi8) (290) 1,196

Net liability arising from defined RERNBEEMEE 2 AEFHE

benefit obligation 512 894

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the

current year/period were as follows:

AE/HARERNEEZREZDNT

31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
+=A=t+-—8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1st January 2011 and 1st April 2010 RZE——F—H—AK

—E-TFMOA—H 8,833 7,845
Current service costs IR B AR 75 A AR 263 246
Interest cost B A 132 282
Actuarial (gain)/loss EE (%), Eig (225) 460

At 31st December 2011 and RZZE——F+TZA=+—H8EF
31st December 2010 —F-FF+-A=+—H 9,003 8833
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year/period were

as follows:

40. RIKBRIFHE ()

REE/HREFEEE LA

REEZFHNT

31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—EF——-F —T-TF
+=—HA=+-—H +ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1st January 2011 and 1st April 2010 RZTE——F—A—BAK

—Z-TFMHA—H 9,135 8,267
Expected return on plan assets TREAGt 818 A O ) 553 496
Actuarial (loss)/gain BE (F18), s (1,570) 207
Contributions from the employer B EHHK 83 165

At 31st December 2011 and RZE—F+=ZA=+—HK
315t December 2010 —F-FF+-A=+—H 8,201 9,135

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as

AEEETERIMAREBHIBEZAS LN

follows: T
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—ZT——F —T—TF
+=—HA=+-—H +=ZA=+—8
% %
Equity instruments fRART A 66 80
Debt instruments B LTEA 31 17
Cash RE 3 3
100 100
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41. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 1. REXBMARSE
For the For the
year ended nine months ended

31st December 31st December

2011 2010
BE-Z——F HE-ZT-ZTF
+=HA=+-—H +=ZA=+—~H
IHFEE IENE A
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before income tax R P45 250 Bl e Al 45,110 44,181
Adjustments for: R
— Share of results of associates (note 23) —JEHBt S N R EE
(PfFE23) (913) (224)
- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) — | A E#E (faE21) 2,071 _
— Depreciation and amortisation of W BERZENER
property, plant and equipment (note 19) 55 (PEE19) 17,084 11,202
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant —HEVE BERREZ
and equipment (see note (a) below) BiR (k)
(RTxMzEE) 1,060 (27)
— Fair value gain on forward contract —BHEHN 2 AR EBEKS (21) -
— Fair value gain on revaluation of —ERREMEZ
investment properties (note 20) AR EEEI (FEE20) (4,000) (5,800)
— Fair value loss on contingent consideration —HARBZAAEE
payable (note 9) D (HaE9) 1,226 -
— Reversal of impairment loss of intangible — RO\ EERE
assets (note 21) (F5E21) - (200)
— Interest income (note 8) —F B U A (B5Es) (265) (333)
Changes in working capital: EEECEE
- Inventories 78 (23,691) 24,822
—Trade receivables —EWE HKIA (37,343) (17,045)
— Finance lease receivables —mEREEKFE (17,613) (5,124)
- Other receivables, deposits and —HA W IE e
prepayments IES AR 4,411 3414
— Amounts due from customers for — B ITREWE P RIE
contract work (28,956) (71,236)
— Restricted bank deposits — PR HIERITIF K 1,064 27,614
—Trade payables — BT E 55IE 7,280 3,150
— Other payables and accruals —H A RIE R EEH B A (9,358) (3,527)
— Receipts in advance — Bl E 13,723 (74,876)
~ Deferred income —IRIERA - 49
Cash used in operations KEXBARE (29,131) (64,160)
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41. CASH USED IN OPERAT|ONS (Continued)

4. REXKARE »

Note: B3 -
@  Inthe cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and @ RREREBRAN HEWE BERREZAF
equipment comprise: SHIEBIE
For the For the
year ended nine months ended
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
BE-Z——#&% BHE-Z T4
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IHEE LIENEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Net book amount of property, plant and ME BERREBZEDEE
equipment (note 19) (FzE19) 1,497 81
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WEREEZ
equipment (note 11) (B18) /s (MaEn) (1,060) 227
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERZEZMEHRIE
equipment 437 308

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42, EERYEIE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum
THEMSMETHAER
REBOSEAELT

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certain

of its office premises and computer equipment which fall due as follows:

31st December

REER AEERBETSAIHEERENER
BERERMREZRK

31st December

2011 2010

=F——F —FFF

+=A=+-H +=A=+-§

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FE T FHT

Within one year —FR 4,176 8926

In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERFRN(BREEERE) 1,757 4245

5,933 13,171

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two to three MAERBEZHOFA—_E=FEF— K M
years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. SEFERBLZ Lo

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term of three

KKz ko

years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

ERE MO T =FRER—

//\ ’ Tﬂﬁﬁ;
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43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. ERELE
31st December 31st December
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
+=A=+—8H +=ZA=+—~H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of property, NGNS R
plant and equipment contracted for but BREBEEHEZDE BER
not provided in the consolidated financial RIEZBERFX

statements 420 411

44, FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 44, RREXHEH =

At 31st December 2011, the Group had contracted with a customer in RZEBE—F+-_A=+—H AEEEHL
respect of land and buildings under operating leases as follows: WREFZEERHNEEFETAMAT

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-TF

+=—A=+-—8 +=—A=+—8

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

Not later than one year —FR 873 1,527

Later than one year and not later than five years —FREAFA - 873

873 2,400
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45.

46.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2011, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities and performance bonds amounted to approximately HK$860,000
(2010: HK$1,924,000) (note 32). At 31st December 2011, performance bonds
of HK$32,216,000 (2010: HK$31,330,000) have been issued by the Group to

customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44,600,000 as at 31st December 2011
(2010: HK$44,700,000). The amount utilised against goods supplied as at
31st December 2011 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was
approximately HK$ 1,200,000 (2010: HK$3,700,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December 2011, the Group's leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$149,900,000 (2010: HK$129,300,000) and investment
properties of approximately HK$28,700,000 (2010: HK$24,700,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities of the Group.

At 31st December 2011, the Group's restricted bank balances were pledged
to secure the banking facilities and performance bonds of the Group of
approximately HK$860,000 (2010: HK$1,924,000) (note 32).

45.

46.

RAREE
BARITERABEERRTRE RBLORFE
SR T ——F+=A=+—H#AE860000
B (ZF—TF 119240008 7%) (HizE32) e
R-Z——F+-A=+—8 A£EAFF
ERE HIER 2 BARE 23221600087 (=
T — T4 131,330,000/ 7T ) °

R-ZT——F+_A=+—H BMEHEH
ZERMASEEHREER Z RAIEROAR
44,600,000 JT(= T — T 4F : 44,700,000 B TT) °
RZE——F+=-A=+—8 EHEER
NABRRERRZEHEERZEBOR
1,200,000 % 7T(=F —Z 4 : 3,700,000/ 7T) °

BEEIEH
WZZ——F+-A=+—H A£EZHE
4 3 R T 49149,900,0008 7T (—F — T 4F -
129,300,000/ 7T ) & #% & ¥ 2 %928,700,00078 7T
(ZZ—F4F:2470000087T) C RIEAEE 2
RITRIE 2 o

R-TE——F+-_A=+—RA AEEZZR
FIRITHEAR T AEREBBITRE KB HIRF
2 3 #9860,00078 7T ( =T —T4F : 1,924,00078
7t) (BEE32) °
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31st December 201

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2011 & &

1, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.05% of the

Company's shares. The remaining 32.95% of the shares are widely held at 31st

December 2011. The ultimate parent company of the Company is Beijing

Teamsun Technology Co,, Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with

its shares listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange.

(@)  Transactions with related parties:

RE VIR MEE

—E——Ft+-ASt-BLEE

47. BEALTRS

R-T——F+-A=1+—8 BFBEBEK
BEARDBIMRD 26705% R T ——F+—
A=+—8"#T3295%% 7 B Kb A L FTHF
B A RR LG AR BILREBERNE R
MABERAR —ERFPEFEMKL 2 AR
RO ELBEHRZ ST e
@ HEBATZRS:

For the For the
year ended nine months ended

31st December 31st December

2011 2010
BE-Z2——F HE_T—ZTF
+=HA=+-—H +ZA=+—81t
LFE NEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Nature of transaction REME
Ultimate holding company: BARER AT :
Sales by the Group rEEHEE 323 =
Purchase by the Group REEESE 51 75
Other income by the Group REBEMBA 871 12
Expenses charged to the Group REES M ZHAEZ 452 129
Fellow subsidiaries: BESG VAN
Purchase by the Group AEBEEE 2,751 770
Immediate holding company: BEEEZERAR
Expenses charged by the Group REBERBK AL 250 500
Expenses charged to the Group AEBETFZHAX 86 82
The associates: VNGB
Sales by the Group rEBEE 298 385
Purchases by the Group AEEEE 4,239 4249
Staff costs charged to the Group AEBYNZEIRAX 534 355
Rentals and administrative expenses AEBBW A RITHAS
charged by the Group 159 179
Rental income charged by the Group AEBEBKzBEBA 64 =
Management services income charged MASEKER 2 EEREBA
by the Group 76 -
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal EmEkRBERRMBEEPRER —SERZ
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and FEEERTETRS

vendors.
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)  During the year ended 31st December 2011, contribution of (b)
HK$83,000 was made in respect of a defined benefit plan for a
director of the Company (nine months ended 31st December
2010: HK$165,000) (note 40).

(00 The Group's balances with related parties are set out in notes 30 and (©)
36.
(d)  Key management compensations are disclosed in notes 13 and 14. (d)

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2011

and 31st December 2010 are as follows:

47. BEALTR S @)

HE-_Z——&F+_A=+—8 ' /%
& F T Bl 4L 3X83, 00078 LA E AR Al —
MNEEmMEL(BE-_T—ZTF+=A
=+—HIEN@EA 1650008 7T) (HIFE
40) °

REEEEE AL 2 HE AR K
305236 °

FEEREABMERWEI3RI4NEE -

48. TEMBAR 2F15
RZZE——F+=-A=+—AR-ZE—FF
TZA=+—H ARAZEEMBARFE

LN

Percentage of

Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital

establishment and share capital/ held by the Company

operation registered capital AQFEL
Name of subsidiary HEMRL/ BRETR BORA Principal activities
WEARBE RYREEER, 5% BRREEREL BREHL TEEH
Automated Systems (HK)) Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BBRG (BE)ERAR B Ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
2ETTERR of hardware services (including
HK$55,350,000 installation and maintenance services)
" Non-voting and software services (including
deferred shares software development, consulting and
55,350,000/ 7T professional services)
"ERZRETR REER HESREMR
R A R R R
(BEZERRERSE) RAMRSE
(BREEHRE BRREXRE)
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
RMERREARR A B Ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
12,000,000/ 7T of hardware services (including
TER installation and maintenance services)

and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

REER HESREMR
R A R R R
(BEZERRERSE) RIMRSE
(BREEHRE BRREXRE)
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
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48. TEMEB AT ZHFE @

Percentage of
Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital
establishment and share capital/ held by the Company
operation registered capital AAFERL
Name of subsidiary B A ERTR BITRA Principal activities
WEARERE RIREEEAR BRRE/EMELR BEAHL FTEXR
(CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau MOP10,000 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BEZH ORM)BRAA ol Ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
P 100007T of hardware services (including
L@ installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
REZKR HEBKERK
BRH R R R RS
(BRLERRERY) B RS
(BREEMFAE BRREERY)
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand THB50,000,000 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
et Ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
Z%$K50,000,0007C of hardware services (including
L@ installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
REZKR HEBKERK
BRH R R R RS
(BRLERRERY) B4R
(BREEMFAE BRREERY)
Guangzhou Automated Systems People’s Republic of China HK$ 18,000,000 100% Sale of computer products and

Limited
BHREEEEERBRERAR

REARAME

(Note 1)
18,000,000/ 7T
(KizE1)

solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation
and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEEMEMRBRAIRRK
REEERS (AERER
RERTE) REM RS
(BERMARE
BRI REZERE)
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Percentage of

48. TEMB LTI ZHFE @

Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital
establishment and share capital/ held by the Company
operation registered capital AAFERL
Name of subsidiary B A BRI BITRA Principal activities
WEAREE RIREEER BRRE/EMELR BEAHL TERH
Taiwan Automated Systems Limited Republic of China NTD42,000,000 100% Sale of computer products and
BEREEEENNRERLT FERE 15 %42,000,0007T solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation
and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEBRERMRBATRR
REE (RIS
(BRRERRERB) R
BMRE (BERGRE
BRREERS)
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd. * Singapore SGD2,245,048 100% Investment holding, provision of
IS 2,245048% IS T developing, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology risk
management products
REER REME-
D B RERRA;
RBEREMES
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd * Malaysia MYR250,000 100% Provision of distributing,
BRAER 55 #250,0007T implementing and
supporting technology risk
management products
REDH B RSREM
RBEREMES
i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd * Malaysia MYR2 100% Provision of distributing and
SRAED BT implementing technology risk

management products
R B R B
RERERERFS
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

48. TEMEB AT ZHFE @

Percentage of

Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital

establishment and share capital/ held by the Company

operation registered capital AAFERL
Name of subsidiary B A ERTR BITRA Principal activities
WEAREE RIREEEAR BRRE/EMELR BEEOL TERY
i-Sprint Innovations Inc. * United States of America Us$100 100% Provision of distributing and
EL E£100T implementing technology risk
management products
R R E MR
RREREMES
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands * USS$2 Ordinary shares '100% Property holding
KBRS e ERR ESSEE
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands # USS$2 Ordinary shares '100% Property holding
KBRS e ERR ESSEE
Express Profits Development British Virgin Islands # USS$2 Ordinary shares '100% Property holding
Limited KBRS e ERR ESSEE
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands HKS0.1 Ordinary shares '100% Investment holding
REs 0BT EBR REER

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry

practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote

at any general meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on

winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

! Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

2011.

Note:

These companies were newly acquired during the year ended 31st December

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the People’s Republic

of China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. The registered capital paid up to

31st December 2011 was HK$18,000,000 (2010: HK$18,000,000).

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year

(2010: same).

B aE -

ERFRER (WIFAARRRAEE) W B
BREF YRR SR EA A RMERBRR K E 2
BEXLEBRRAGINE LREX2EEFR
B Z (AT DK ©

e

2ERAINBBRE -

ARBEEFBBZHBAT -

BUEARR-_ZF——F+_A=1+—RBLFE
U B

BMNREEZEEERBEARARDRFEAR
HMBEFMAIEBECE BE-_T——F
+=A=+—HBZE#:ME A %18000,0004%
7T (ZZ— T4 1 18,000,000/ T ) ©

RAFREFEE A HERBARNRTENERES (=
T—TF :AR) -
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Particulars of Investment Properties
REYEFIE

31st December 2011 —ZE——F+=-A=+—H

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use Tenure

it 2 BEEE(FHER) Jizk=3 FH

Units 1to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor, 11,744 sq/ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza, 11,744 5 R [EES AR A

11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories
R

»H

1158
651268

12758 RI15Z215 B AL
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BEASEBRBERAR - E

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (HK) Ltd.

15/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Ltd.

16/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

34/F, Tower B, Victory Plaza, No.101-103 Ti Yu Xi Road
Tian He District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510620)

Tel: (86) 20 2806 0860 Fax: (86) 20 2806 0866

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited - Shenzhen

Room 601, No.12 Building, Second-Phase Software Park

Middle Zone of High-tech Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China
(Postal Code: 518057)

Tel: (86) 755 2671 1491/ 2671 1481/ 2671 1471

Fax: (86) 755 2671 1451

Customer Service Centers

Beijing

F10-11, Science Fortune Centre

8 Xueging Road, Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100192)

Tel: (86) 10 8273 3988 Fax: (86) 10 8273 3999

Shanghai

Room 501, 502/510-512, Tower A, Far East International Plaza
319 Xianxia Road, Changning District, Shanghai, China
(Postal Code: 200051)

Tel: (86) 21 6235 1222 Fax: (86) 21 6235 1629

Hangzhou

Unit G, Tower 6, Zhongtian Mansion

173 Yugu Road, Hangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 310007)

Tel: (86) 571 8767 2710, (86) 571 8767 2711, (86) 571 8767 2712
Fax: (86) 571 8767 2713

Shenyang

Room 1903, Tower A, President Building

69 Heping North Street, Heping District, Shenyang, China
(Postal Code: 110003)

Tel: (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229

Fax: (86) 24 2281 2811

Zhuhai Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Center
1/F, Block B-6, Zhuhai Southern Software Park

No.1 Software Road, Zhuhai, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 339 5569 Fax: (86) 756 339 5577

0B % B A A )

BE

B RG (BH)BRAR

BV H

&SR

#EEE 151518

EHE ¢ (852) 2601 6998 {EE : (852) 2601 6936

A EKEHE AR A A

EEYH

2R

E|EE 51612

EAE ¢ (852) 2541 9900 {EE : (852) 2541 1338

A Bl Ay dth

BNREEEESRHIAERAR

JE N T RO [ B8 B PR K 101-1035%

# % I EI5 B 3418

(B4 1 510620)

T E (86) 2028060860 fEE : (86) 20 2806 0866

BNREEEESRHEER AR —FY
TR LE SRR

R — 7121601

(#4471 518057)

E5E 1 (86) 7552671 1491/ 2671 1481/ 2671 1471
{5HE : (86) 755 2671 1451

BEE RO

=

1t TR [ 25 RS 5R

BHEBE R DAE10-118

(#3481 100192)

EE 0 (86) 1082733988  fHE : (86) 108273 3999

i

LM RERIIERK99%

IRRBE KEARESOT ~ 502/510-512%

(Ep 4 : 200051)

5 (86)2162351222  {HE : (86) 2162351629

M

UM & & B 17398

f K E6iEGRE

(EB4R : 310007)

% 1 (86) 5718767 2710,(86) 571 8767 2711, (86) 571 8767 2712
B : (86) 57187672713

B
v 55 1 R0 S [ 0 S b K #6957
B R EARE1903E

(#B 4 : 110003)
B35 ¢ (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229
{HE : (86) 242281 2811

BRI MINHA R AS RO

TG TR REHE 5%

5 75 B B Bl — &

(B4R : 519080)

T E ¢ (86) 7563395569  {HE : (86) 756 339 5577
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BRRSAEEAERAFA-TEWBREE QT

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd.

3/F,No.18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road

Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, RO.C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598 Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No.180

Edf Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo, 14 Andar O-R, Macau
Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No.180

Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo, 14 Andar O-R, Macau
Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th Fl.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0902, 9th F.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750C #02-14/15, TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Chai Chee Road, Singapore 469 003

Tel: (65) 6244 3900 Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd

No. 608 4th Floor Block A, Glomac Business Centre

10 Jalan SS 6/1 Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya Selangor
Tel: 60 3 7803 8890 Fax: 60 3 7803 9284

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd

No. 608 4th Floor Block A, Glomac Business Centre

10 Jalan SS 6/1 Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya Selangor
Tel: 60 3 7803 8890 Fax: 60 3 7803 9284

UNITED STATES

i-Sprint innovations Inc

197 Route 18 South, Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816

Tel: 1201 604 3545 Fax:1 7324220178

&

AEREEEEMRHEARAR
BEatmI4RH @

RIERE R 1857312

Ak (886)287928598  fHE : (836) 28792 8569

P

BB R4 CRPY) BARA R
SRPIR E 4 B 51805
HREEEEROIMEORE
TiE(853)28786392  {HE : (853) 28786390

RERFGRX CRF)AERAR]
JEPYR A4 518055
FEEEEPOIMEORE

E 55 (853) 28786392 {HE : (853) 2878 6390

£

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th Fl.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand

B AE ¢ (662) 1853206 fHE : (662) 1853207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0902, 9th Fl.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand
B 1 (662) 1853206 fHE : (662) 1853207

ESipIi

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750C #02-14/15, TechnoPark @ Chai Chee

Chai Chee Road, Singapore 469 003

BAE ¢ (65) 6244 3900 fBE © (65) 6244 8900

2R ¥E a2

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd

No. 608 4th Floor Block A, Glomac Business Centre

10 Jalan SS 6/1 Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya Selangor
% 3 1 6037803 8890 fH5 1 6037803 9284

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd

No. 608 4th Floor Block A, Glomac Business Centre

10 Jalan SS 6/1 Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya Selangor
&5 1 6037803 8890 {55 : 60378039284

ES

i-Sprint innovations Inc

197 Route 18 South, Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816

A 1201604 3545 {HE 17324220178
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